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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the members of Aegean Properties Limited
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We were engaged to audit the accompanying IND AS financial statements of Aegean Properties
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and notes to financial statements, including a summary
of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying IND AS financial statements of the Company.
Because of the significance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion and Material
Uncertainty Relating to Going Concern section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these IND AS financial
statements.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia! Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board's Report, but
does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is @ material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.




Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of
the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable Assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether

) due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are




required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in
(i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

i As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013, we give in the “Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4
of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought all the information and explanations, which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of accounts.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controis, refer to our separate report
in “Annexure B”. That report expresses a disclaimer of opinion on the Company’s internal




controls over financial reporting for the reasons stated therein.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons or entities,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (“‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

v. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the
company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“*Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

vi. Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

vii.  The Company has not declared or paid dividend during the year
For Vinay Bhushan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Reg No.138529W

\ ” .

CA. Vinay Bhushan
Partner

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22" May, 2023

UDIN £ 35D263% BGiXNQKLLL 2.




Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Report as required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Refer to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date). With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report
to the members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, we
report the following:

(D

(ii)

(i)

(@)
A.

(c)

(d)

(@)

(b)

The Company has proper records related to full particulars including quantitative details and
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The company is not having any intangible asset. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (i)(a)(B)
of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the company.

In our opinion Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management at reasonable intervals. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification during the year.

As explained to us, and as per information provided to us, the title deeds of immovable
propenrty disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year. Therefore,
the provisions of Clause (i)(d) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the company.

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (i)(e) of paragraph 3 of the order
are not applicable to the company.

As the Company does not have any inventory, clause 3(ii) (a) of the order is not applicable to
the Company.

During any point of time of the year, the company has not been sanctioned any working
capital limits, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the
company.

During the year, the Company has not made any investments in, provided any guarantee or
security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Therefore, the provisions
of clause 3(iii) of the said Order are not applicable to the company.

The Company has not made any loans, investments. guarantees and security on which
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable. Therefore, the
provisions of clause 3(iv) of the said Order are not applicable to the company.




(vii)
(@

(b)

(viii)

(ix)
(a)

(b)

(d)

(e)

x)
(@)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanaticns given to us, the Company has
not accepted any deposits from public. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (v) of paragraph 3 of
the order are not applicable to the Company.

As explained to us, the Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost
records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company.
Therefore, the provisions of Clause (vi) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the
Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is
generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income tax, Duty of Customs, GST, Cess and other statutory dues with the
appropriate authorities to the extent applicable to it. There are no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of income tax, wealth tax, service tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, duty
of Excise or Cess which have remained outstanding as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more
than 6 months from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there is no dues referred in sub-clause
(a) which have not been deposited on account of any dispute. Therefore, the provisions of
Clause (vii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no any
transaction not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of any loan or other borrowings or any interest due thereon to any
lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has
not been a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no loans were
obtained by the company in the current year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any funds
on short term basis during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not taken any funds
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies.

According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not raised money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). Therefore, the
provisions of Clause (x)(a) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.




(b)

(xi)
@)

(b)

(©

(xii)

(xill)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(xvi)

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares during the year and the requirements of
section 42 and section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with and the funds
raised have been used for the purposes for which the funds were raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, no fraud by the company or on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit.

During the year no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been
filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistie-blower complaints received during
the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of
the order are not applicable to the Company.

As per the information and explanations received to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of Companies Act where applicable, and the details have been disclosed in the financial
statements, etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards. Further the Company is not
required to constitute an Audit Committee under section 177 of the Act, and accordingly, to this
extent, the provision of clause 3(xiif) of the order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not covered by section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, related to appointment of
internal auditor of the company. Therefore, the company is not required to appoint any internal
auditor. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with him. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xv) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under sectior 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934.

The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during
the year.

The company is not a Core Investmerit Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India.

As per the information and explanations received, the group does not have any CIC as part of the
group.

The company has not incurred any cash loss during the current financial year




(xviii) The Previous Statutory Auditor of the Company M/s Anil A Dikshit & Co. has resigned during the
F.Y 2022-23.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, the
auditor's knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that
no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fali due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date.

(xx)
(a) According to information and explanation given to us, there are no ongoing projects of the
Company, and accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xx) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company

(b) According to information and explanation given to us, the Company does not have any ongoing
projects. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xx)(b) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable
to the Company.

(xxi) The Company does not have any subsidiary company. Therefore, the company does not require to
prepare consolidated financial statement. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xxi) of paragraph 3
of the order are not applicable to the Company.

For Vinay Bhushan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22" May, 2023

UDIN: 23502632 Bax NGK 4Ly 2.



Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Aegean Properties Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (‘ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013. :

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s interna! financial controls over financial
reporting of the company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financia! Reporting (the “Guidance Ncte”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing as specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures £
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;(2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company




are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us , the
Company has, in all material the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internai control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Vinay Bhushan & Associates.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg No4 7
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Membership No. 502.\632"

Place: Mumbai
Date: 22™ May, 2023

UDIN: 23502632 BGXxNAKLyy 9.




AEGEAN PROPERTIES LIMITED
CIN:U45200MH1995PLC084766
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
a) Investment in Property
b) Income tax assets (net)

CURRENT ASSETS
a) Financial Assets

i) Trade receivables

i) Cash and Cash Equivalents
b) Deferred tax assets (net)
c) Other current assets

TOTAL

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a) Equity Share Capital
b) Other equity

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Trade payables
a) Total outstanding dues of micro and
small enterprises

b) Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro and small
enterprises

b) Other current liabilities
¢) Income Tax liabilities (net)

TOTAL

See accompanying notes forming part of the Ind AS
financial statements.

Notes

W N U

10

11
12

1-26

As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Rs. in '000) (Rs. in '000)
4,792.02 4,900.44
- 38.44
4,792.02 4,938.87
11,124.08 9,963.33
158.99 25.89
62.58 64.76
28.41 53.33
11,374.05 10,107.31
16,166.07 15,046.19
3,000.00 3,000.00
13,072.99 12,003.32
16,072.99 15,003.32
15.00 16.50
25.83 26.37

52.25 B
93.08 42.87
16,166.07 15,046.19

As per our report of even date attached
For Vinay Bhushan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registrati

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2023

UDIN: 23 5D2.6 3.2, B6i XN GK 4,2,

For and on behalf of the Board of Directc

of Aegean Properties Limited

Krishna Datla

Director
DIN:00003247

Place: Thane
Date: May 22, 2023

N

Srikant Sharma
Director
DIN:07552040
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AEGEAN PROPERTIES LIMITED
CIN:U45200MH1995PLC084766

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Income:
Revenue from operations

Total revenue (I)

Expenses:
Depreciation and amortization expense

Other expenses
Total (II)

Profit/(Loss) before tax

Tax expense:
Current tax
Tax Expense related to Prior Year
Deferred tax

Total tax expense

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Earning per share (equity shares, par value Rs 10
each)

Computed on the basis of total profit for the year
Basic / Diluted (Rs.)

See accompanying notes forming part of the Ind AS
financial statements.

Notes

13

14
15

22
22
22

16

1-26

Year ended Year ended March

March 31, 2023 31, 2022
(Rs. in '000) (Rs. in '000)
1,800.00 1,800.00
1,800.00 1,800.00
108.42 108.42
268.56 495.27
376.98 603.69
1,423.02 1,196.31
355.97 295.69

(4.80) -
2.18 5.64
353.35 301.33
1,069.68 894.98
35.66 29.83

As per our report of even date attached
For Vinay Bhushan & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 130529W

Membership No.: 502632

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2023
UDIN: Z 3 5"0263286—:><NQK'—WQZ

For and on behalf of the Board of Director

of Aegean Properties Limited

Sl —
Krishna Datla Srikant Sharma

Director Director
DIN:00003247 DIN:07552040

Place: Thane
Date: May 22, 2023



AEGEAN PROPERTIES LIMITED

CIN:U45200MH1995PLC084766
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Year ended Year ended
PARTICULARS March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Rs. in '000) (Rs. in '000)
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax 1,423.02 1,196.31
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortization expense 108.42 108.42
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,531.44 1,304.73
Movements in working capital :

Decrease/(increase) in other financial assets (1,160.75) - 985.50

Decrease/(increase) in other assets 24.92 30.21

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables & Other liabilities (2.04) - 198.18

Increase/(decrease) in provisions - -
Cash generation used in operations 393.58 151.27

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (260.48) - 303.96

Net cash flow used in operating activities (A) 133.10 - 152.69
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B) - -
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing activities (C) - -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 133.10 - 152.69
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 25.89 178.59
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 158.99 25.89
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand - 0.05
With scheduled banks on:
Current account 158.99 25.85
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 5) 158.99 25.89
Note

1) Cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in the Accounting Standard (AS-3)
"Cash Flow Statements" as specified by Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

2) Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date attached

For Vinay Bh an & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directo
Chartered Acco of Aegean Properties kimited
sy m

\ r
Vinay B %&LI/
Part RN No. Y Krishna Datla Srikant Sharma /
Membership No.: 526 | Director Director

DIN:00003247 DIN:07552040

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2023 Place: Thane

UDIN:235~026~3%G]XNGZK“L‘”2 Date: May 22, 2023



AEGEAN PROPERTIES LIMITED

CIN:U45200MH1995PLC084766
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(a) Equity share capital:

Number of shares Amount
(Rs. in '000)
Balance as at 1 April, 2021 30,000 3,000
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 30,000 3,000
Changes in equity share capital during the year = -
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 30,000 3,000

(b) Other equity

Reserves and

surplus

Retained
Balance as at April 01, 2021 11,108.34
Profit for the year 894.98
Balance as at March 31, 2022 12,003.32
Profit for the year 1,069.68
Balance as at March 31, 2023 13,072.99

See accompanying notes forming part of the Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of even date attached
For Vinay Bhushan & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Director:

Chartered Accountants of Aegean Properties Limited
Firm Registration No. 130529W

Krishna Datla Srlkant Sharma
Director Director

DIN:00003247 DIN:07552040
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 22, 2023 Place: Thane

UDIN: £3502 63 2BGXNGKUGu2. Date: May 22, 2023



AEGEAN PROPERTIES LIMITED
CIN:U45200MH1995PLC084766
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

1. Corporate information

Aegean Properties Limited ('the Company') is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The
Company is engaged in the business of renting property.

2. Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These standalone financial statements of the Company have been in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) together with the comparative period data as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023,

(b) Basis of accounting

The Company maintains accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention, except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair
value in accordance with Ind AS The carrying value of all the items of property, plant and equipment and investment property as on date of transition is
considered as the deemed cost.

{c¢) Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as
follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable
- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of
the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

(d) Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”). The statement of cash flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash flows”. The disclosure
requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule lil to the Act, are presented by way
of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards. Amounts in the
financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupees to two decimals places.

(e) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

- ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

- itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. Operating cycle for the
business activities of the company covers the duration of the specific project/contract/product line/service including the defect liability period wherever
applicable and extends up to the realisation of receivabies (including retention monies) within the agreed credit period normally applicable to the respective
lines of business.




AEGEAN PROPERTIES LIMITED
CIN:U45200MH1995PLC084766
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

() Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured,
regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the
principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to
inventory and credit risks. Based on the Educational Material on Ind AS 18 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl), sales tax/ value
added tax (VAT) / service tax/GST is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on service provided or value added to the
commodity by the seller or service provider on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Revenue is recognised based on nature of activity when consideration can be reasonably measured and recovered with reasonable certainty. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances

i) Revenue from operations

Rental income from operating leases (net of any incentives given to the lessees) is recognized as per the lease term.

ii)y Other income
Interest income on loans and deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Interest on income tax refund is recognized on receipt of the refund order.

(g) Exceptional items

An item of income or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in order to improve an understanding of the performance of the
company is treated as an exceptional item and the same is disclosed in the notes to accounts.

(h) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any.
Property, plant and equipment acquired on hire purchase basis are recognised at their cash values. Cost includes professional fees related to the acquisition
of PPE and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the company’s accounting policy.

For transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of PPE measured as per I-GAAP less accumulated
depreciation and cumulative impairment on the transition date of April 1, 2016. In respect of revalued assets, the value as determined by valuers as reduced
by accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment is taken as cost on transition date.

Own manufactured PPE is capitalised at cost including an appropriate share of overheads. Administrative and other general overhead expenses that are
specifically attributable to construction or acquisition of PPE or bringing the PPE to working condition are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the
PPE.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “capital work-in-progress”. (Also refer to policies on leases, borrowing
costs, impairment of assets and foreign curmrency transactions infra).

Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less
their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined
by technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year
end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis.

Where cost of a part of the asset (“asset component”) is significant to total cost of the asset and useful life of that part is different from the useful life of the
remaining asset, useful life of that significant part is determined separately and such asset component is depreciated over its separate useful life.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the period of use.

Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its
remaining useful life.

Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated on a straight line basis over the lease term. Where there is reasonable certainty that the company shall
obtain ownership of the assets at the end of the lease term, such assets are depreciated based on the useful life prescribed under Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013 or based on the useful life adopted by the company for similar assets.

Depreciation on PPE is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management. The identified
components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal asset. The Company
has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its PPE.

Estimated
useful lives
(in years)
Building
Leased improvements/Fagade 30

Plant & Machinery 15




AEGEAN PROPERTIES LIMITED
CIN:U45200MH1995PLC084766
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

(i) Impairment of fixed assets

G

—

As at the end of each accounting year, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment property, intangible assets and
investments in subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the said assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss,
if any. Goodwill and the intangible assets with indefinite life are tested for impairment each year.

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is
determined:
(i) in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and

(i) in the case of a cash generating unit (a Company of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the higher of the
cash generating unit’s net selling price and the value in use.

(The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of an asset and
from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the discount rate (pre-tax) is determined based on the weighted average
cost of capital of the company suitably adjusted for risks specified to the estimated cash flows of the asset).

For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable company of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or company of assets.

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such deficit is recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverahle amount.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss is recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories -

1 Debt instruments at amortised cost

2 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

3 Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
4 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The Company does not have any financial assets falling under category 1 to 3 above.

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which
otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt
instrument as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in
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Equity investments
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading classified as at
FVTPL and are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the profit or loss. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes
such election on an instrument- by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

1) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

2) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass through’ arrangement;
and either

{a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control

of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company alsoc recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance (or
reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified
on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company'’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and financial
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their ¢classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.
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The Company does not have any financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract - with the
effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative
causes some or all of the cash flows Notes to the financial statements that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified
according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that
the variable is not specific to a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded
derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract.

Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification
is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or
internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties.

A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its
operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is
the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any
previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Leases
The determination of whether an agreement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the agreement at the date of inception.
The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. For
arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2016, the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain lease on the basis of
facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

i) Finance leases:

A) Leases where the company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the related assets are classified as finance
leases. Assets under finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the lower of the fair value or the
present value of minimum lease payments and a liability is created for an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated
between the liability and the interest cost, so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each

period.
B) Assets given under a finance lease are recognised as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Lease
income is recognised over the period of the lease so as to yield a constant rate of return on the net investment in the lease.

ii) Operating leases:
The leases which are not classified as finance lease are operating leases.

A) Lease rentals on assets under operating lease are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

B) Assets leased out under operating leases are continued to be shown under the respective class of assets. Rental income is
recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Taxes on income

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the
provisions of the Income tax Act 1961, and based on the expected outcome of assessments/appeals.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the company’s financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computation of taxable profit and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted
or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences including the temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the company is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probabie that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all taxable temparary differences to the extent that is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no [onger probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses/losses under the head “capital gains" are recognised and
carried forward to the extent of available taxable temporary differences or where there is convincing other evidence that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
company expects, at the end of reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Transaction or event which is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or in equity, is recorded along with

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT
credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT
credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under
the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit
Entitlement.” The Company reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent
the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet
date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

(n) Contingent liabilities

(o

—

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements of the Company. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare case where there is a liability that cannot be
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The Company does not have any potential equity shares, and
accordingly, the basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share are the same.

{p) Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and other bank balances
which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being subject to more than insignificant risk of change in
value, are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents.
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(q) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method, finance charges in respect of assets acquired on finance lease and
exchange differences arising on foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing costs net of any investment income from the temporary investment of related borrowings, that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised/inventoried as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. A
qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(r) Cash Dividends to equity holders in the company
The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

(s) Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act”). The statement of cash flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash flows”. The disclosure
requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule I1l to the Act, are presented by way
of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded
off to two decimal places as permitted by Schedule lil to the Companies Act, 2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupees to two decimals places.

(t} New Accounting Pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the
amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of 'accounting estimates' and included
amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to
equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company
has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statement.
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Corporate information

Aegean Properties Limited (‘the Company') is a public company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in the business of renting property.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

(b)

(c)

(d

~—

These standalone financial statements of the Company have been in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) natified
under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) together with the comparative period data as at and for
the year ended March 31, 2023.

Basis of accounting

The Company maintains accounts on accrual basis following the historical cost convention, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value in accordance with Ind AS The carrying value of all the items of property, plant and equipment and
investment property as on date of transition is considered as the deemed cost.

Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

- Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

- Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable
- Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule Ill to the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"). The statement of cash flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7
“Statement of Cash flows". The disclosure requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as
prescribed in the Schedule Ill to the Act, are presented by way of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other
notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards. Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupees. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupees to two decimals places.

(e) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification. An asset is treated as
current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.
Operating cycle for the business activities of the company covers the duration of the specific project/contract/product ling/
including the defect liability period wherever applicable and extends up to the realisation of receivables (including retentig
within the agreed credit period normally applicable to the respective lines of business.
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(f) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured,
regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government. The Company has concluded that it is the
principal in all of its revenue arrangements since it is the primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as it has pricing latitude and is also exposed to
inventory and credit risks. Based on the Educational Material on Ind AS 18 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI), sales tax/ value
added tax (VAT) / service tax/GST s not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on service provided or value added to the
commodity by the seller or service provider on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

Revenue is recognised based on nature of activity when consideration can be reasonably measured and recovered with reasonable certainty. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances

i} Revenue from operations

Rental income from operating leases (net of any incentives given to the lessees) is recognized as per the lease term.

ii) Other income
Interest income on loans and deposits is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable.

Interest on income tax refund is recognized on receipt of the refund order.

(g) Exceptional items

An item of income or expense which by its size, type or incidence requires disclosure in order to improve an understanding of the performance of the
company is treated as an exceptional item and the same is disclosed in the notes to accounts.

(h) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)

PPE is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. PPE is stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits availed, if any, less accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment, if any.
Property, plant and equipment acquired on hire purchase basis are recognised at their cash values. Cost includes professional fees related to the acquisition
of PPE and for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the company’s accounting policy.

For transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of PPE measured as per I-GAAP less accumulated
depreciation and cumulative impairment on the transition date of April 1, 2016. In respect of revalued assets, the value as determined by valuers as reduced
by accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment is taken as cost on transition date.

Own manufactured PPE is capitalised at cost including an appropriate share of overheads. Administrative and other general overhead expenses that are
specifically attributable to construction or acquisition of PPE or bringing the PPE to working condition are allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the
PPE.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate.

PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “capital work-in-progress”. (Aiso refer to policies on leases, borrowing
costs, impairment of assets and foreign currency transactions infra).

Depreciation is recognised using straight line method so as to write off the cost of the assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less
their residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, or in the case of assets where the useful life was determined
by technical evaluation, over the useful life so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year
end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis.

Where cost of a part of the asset (“asset component”) is significant to total cost of the asset and useful life of that part is different from the useful life of the
remaining asset, useful life of that significant part is determined separately and such asset component is depreciated over its separate useful life.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from, owned assets is calculated pro rata to the period of use.

Depreciation charge for impaired assets is adjusted in future periods in such a manner that the revised carrying amount of the asset is allocated over its
remaining useful life.

Assets acquired under finance leases are depreciated on a straight line basis over the lease term. Where there is reasonable certainty that the company shall
obtain ownership of the assets at the end of the lease term, such assets are depreciated based on the useful life prescribed under Schedule |l to the
Companies Act, 2013 or based on the useful life adopted by the company for similar assets.

Depreciation on PPE is calculated on a straight-line basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management. The identified
components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are depreciated over the life of the principal asset. The Company
has used the following rates to provide depreciation on its PPE.

Estimated
useful lives
(in years)
Building
Leased improvements/Facade 30

Plant & Machinery 15
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(i) Impairment of fixed assets

G

—

As at the end of each accounting year, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, investment property, intangible assets and
investments in subsidiary, associate and joint venture companies to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If such indication exists, the said assets are tested for impairment so as to determine the impairment loss,
if any. Goodwill and the intangible assets with indefinite life are tested for impairment each year.

Impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is
determined:
(i) in the case of an individual asset, at the higher of the net selling price and the value in use; and

(i) in the case of a cash generating unit (a Company of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the higher of the
cash generating unit’s net selling price and the value in use.

(The amount of value in use is determined as the present value of estimated future cash flows from the continuing use of an asset and
from its disposal at the end of its useful life. For this purpose, the discount rate (pre-tax) is determined based on the weighted average
cost of capital of the company suitably adjusted for risks specified to the estimated cash flows of the asset).

For this purpose, a cash generating unit is ascertained as the smallest identifiable company of assets that generates cash inflows that
are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or company of assets.

If recoverable amount of an asset (or cash generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, such deficit is recognised
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as impairment loss and the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss is recognised for the asset (or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories -

1 Debt instruments at amortised cost

2 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

3 Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
4 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

The Company does not have any financial assets falling under category 1 to 3 above.

Debt instruments at amortised cost
A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on
the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the
profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortised cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL. In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which
otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates
a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt
instrument as at FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in
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Equity investments
All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading classified as at
FVTPL and are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the profit or loss. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes
such election on an instrument- by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OC| to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

1) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

2) The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement;
and either

(a) The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control

of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment
loss.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance (or
reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk
characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified
on a timely basis.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payabiles, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and financial
Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance
determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.
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The Company does not have any financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract — with the
effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative
causes some or all of the cash flows Notes to the financial statements that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified
according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that
the variable is not specific to a party to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract
that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded
derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract.

Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not heid for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification
is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or
internal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties.

A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its
operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is
the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any
previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Leases
The determination of whether an agreement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the agreement at the date of inception.
The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement. For
arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2016, the Company has determined whether the arrangement contain lease on the basis of
facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

i) Finance leases:

A) Leases where the company has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the related assets are classified as finance
leases. Assets under finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the lower of the fair value or the
present value of minimum lease payments and a liability is created for an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid is allocated
between the liability and the interest cost, so as to obtain a constant periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each
period.

B) Assets given under a finance lease are recognised as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease. Lease
income is recognised over the period of the lease so as to yield a constant rate of return on the net investment in the lease.

ii) Operating leases:
The leases which are not classified as finance lease are operating leases.

A) Lease rentals on assets under operating lease are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight line basis over the
term of the relevant lease.

B) Assets leased out under operating leases are continued to be shown under the respective class of assets. Rental income is
recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Taxes on income

Tax on income for the current period is determined on the basis of taxable income and tax credits computed in accordance with the
provisions of the Income tax Act 1961, and based on the expected outcome of assessments/appeals.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the company’s financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computation of taxable profit and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted
or substantively enacted as on the Balance Sheet date.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences including the temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the company is able to control the reversal of
the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
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Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences to the extent that is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets relating to unabsorbed depreciation/business losses/losses under the head “capital gains” are recognised and
carried forward to the extent of available taxable temporary differences or where there is convincing other evidence that sufficient
future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
company expects, at the end of reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Transaction or event which is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or in equity, is recorded along with

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT
credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT
credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under
the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit
Entitlement.” The Company reviews the "MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent
the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Provisions

-

(m

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are
not discounted to their present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet
date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

(n) Contingent liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements of the Company. A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare case where there is a liability that cannot be
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements.

~—

(o) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The Company does not have any potential equity shares, and
accordingly, the basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per share are the same.

(p) Cash and bank balances

Cash and bank balances also include fixed deposits, margin money deposits, earmarked balances with banks and other bank balances
which have restrictions on repatriation. Short term and liquid investments being subject to more than insignificant risk of change.in
value, are not included as part of cash and cash equivalents.
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(q) Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs include interest expense calculated using the effective interest method, finance charges in respect of assets acquired on finance lease and
exchange differences arising on foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Borrowing costs net of any investment income from the temporary investment of related borrowings, that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised/inventoried as part of cost of such asset till such time the asset is ready for its intended use or sale. A
qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(r) Cash Dividends to equity holders in the company
The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the parent when the distribution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

(s) Presentation of financial statements

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format prescribed in the Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”). The statement of cash flows has been prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 "Statement of Cash flows”. The disclosure
requirements with respect to items in the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss, as prescribed in the Schedule lll to the Act, are presented by way
of notes forming part of the financial statements along with the other notes required to be disclosed under the notified Accounting Standards and the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Amounts in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees in lakhs rounded
off to two decimal places as permitted by Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Per share data are presented in Indian Rupees to two decimals places.

(t) New Accounting Pronouncement

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements - This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the
amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of ‘accounting estimates’ and included
amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes - This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that give rise to
equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company
has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statement.




AEGEAN PROPERTIES LIMITED
CIN:U45200MH1995PLC084766
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 3. - Investment in Property

Buildi Amount
(Rs. in '000)
Gross Block
As at April 1, 2021 6,651.40
Additions -
Disposal -
As at Mar 31, 2022 6,651.40
As at April 1, 2022 6,651.40
Additions -
Disposal -
As at Mar 31, 2023 6,651.40

Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 1, 2021 1,642.54
Charge for the period 108.42
Disposal 2
At March 31, 2022 1,750.96
As at April 1, 2022 1,750.96
Charge for the period 108.42
Disposal =
At March 31, 2023 1,859.38
Net Block
At March 31, 2022 4,900.44
At March 31, 2023 4,792.02
As at As at
March 31, March 31, 2022
2023
(Rs. in '000) (Rs. in "000)

Note 4- Income Tax Assets (net)
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) - 38.44
- 38.44




AEGEAN PROPERTIES LIMITED
CIN:U45200MH1995PLC084766

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 5 - Trade receivables (unsecured)
Unsecured, considered good unless stated otherwise

Unsecured considered good

Ageing of trade receivables :as at March 31, 2023

As at
March 31,
2023

(Rs. in '000)

11,124.08

11,124.08

As at
March 31, 2022

(Rs. in '000)

9,963.33
9,963.33

Cash on hand

Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments
Particulars 6
Unbilled | Not Due Eess[than]G months- 1-2 years 2-3 years moesitnan Total
maonths 3 years
1 year
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered gocod
- 162.00 1,767.66 | 815.03 1,205.31 | 1,474.88 5,699.19 11,124.08
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk _ N = o _ _ _ -
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk _ _ _ _ _ i _ .
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit Impaired
Total = 162.00 1,767.66 | 815.03 1,205.31 HRARHE 5,699.19 11,124.08
Ageing of trade receivables : as at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments
Particulars 6
Unbilled | Not Due Lessitham6 months- 1-2 years 2-3 years Moreithan Total
months 1 year 3 years
(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good
- 162.00 1,294.16 | 612.61 1,474.88 | 2,136.30 4,283.38 9,963.33
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk i
iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk = - = = = = - #
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit Impaired
Total
- 162.00 1,294.16 | 612.61 1,474.88 | 2,136.30 | 4,283.38 9,963.33
As at As at
March 31, March 31, 2022
(Rs. in '000) (Rs. in '000)
Note 6 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks:
With scheduled banks on:
Current account 158.99 25.85
- 0.05
158.99 25.89

Note 7 - Deferred tax Assets (net):
Deferred tax assets

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation
and depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial

Gross deferred tax liability

Note 8 - Loans and advances
Deferred Security Deposits
Prepaid expenses
Balances with statutory / government autharities

62.58

62.58

28.41

28.41

64.76

64.76

10.00
43.33

53.33




AEGEAN PROPERTIES LIMITED
CIN:U45200MH1995PLC084766
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 9 - Share capitai:
Authorised Shares:
30,000 (March 31, 2022 - 30,000) Equity shares of Rs. 100/- each

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up shares:

30,000 (March 31, 2022 - 30,000) Equity shares of Rs. 100/- each fully paid-up

a) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder
Equity shares of Rs. 100/~ each fully paid,

Fermenta Biotech Limited along with its nominees

b) Shares held by holding company

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its
holding Company are as below.

Fermenta Biotech Limited

As at
March 31,
2n23
(Rs. in '000)

3,000.00

3,000.00

3,000.00

As at
March 31, 2022

(Rs. in '000)

3,000.00
3,000.00

3,000.00

3,000.00

3,000.00

As at March 31, 2023

No of % holding in
Shares the class

30,000 100%

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

No of Shares %
holding in
30,000  100%

As at March 31, 2022

30,000 (March 31, 2022 - 30,000) Equity shares of *. 100/- each 3,000.00 3,000.00
c) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Openin Issued
b:lanceg during Closing balance
the year
Equity shares with voting rights
As at 31.03.2023
- Number of shares 30,000 - 30,000
- Amount (Rs. '000) 3,000.00 ~ 3,000.00
As at 31.03.2022
- Number of shares 30,000 - 30,000
- Amount (Rs. '000) 3,000.00 = 3,000.00
d) Share Held by Promoters at the end of the year
Name of promoters As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of Share % of Y% Change No. of Y% of Total % Change
Total | during the year | Share Share during the
Share year
Fermenta Biotech Limited along with its nominees 30,000| 100% - 30,000 100%

Note 10 - Other equity

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period - 1st April 2021
Profit for the year
Balance at the end of the reporting period 31st March 2022

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period - 1st April 2022
Profit for the period
Balance at the end of the reporting period 31st March 2023

Reserves and surplus
Retained Earnings

11,108.34
894.98

12,003.32

12,003.32
1,069.68

T 13,072.99




AEGEAN PROPERTIES LIMITED
CIN:U45200MH1995PLC084766
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

As at As at
March 31, March 31, 2022
2023
(Rs. in '000) (Rs. in '000)
Trade payables:
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 15.00 241.05
15.00 241.05
Ageing of trade payabl as at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2023

Outstanding for the following period from due date

of payments

Particul

articulars Not due Less than 1 1-2 2-3 years More Total

year years than 3

Dues of MSME = = & = = -
Dues of creditors other than MSME 15.00 - - - 15.00
Disputed dues of MSME - - = = = <
Disputed dues of creditors other than MSME - - - = = -
Total 15.00 N - - - 15.00

As at March 31, 2022
Outstanding for the following period from due date

Ageing of trade payables: as at March 31, 2022

: of payments
I
L plotidas Less than 1 1-2 2-3 years More fotal
year years than 3
Dues of MSME = - - - = =
Dues of creditors other than MSME - 241.05 - - - 241.05
Disputed dues of MSME - - - - - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than MSME - - - - - -
Total - 241.05 - - - 241.05
As at As at
March 31, March 31, 2022
2023
(Rs. in '000) (Rs. in '000)
Note 11 - Other current liabilities
Statutory dues 25.83 26.37
25.83 26.37
Note 12 - Income Tax liabilities (net)
52.25 -

Income Tax liabilities (net)
52.25 -




AEGEAN PROPERTIES LIMITED
CIN:U45200MH1995PLC084766
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 13 - Revenue from operations
Rent Income

Note 14 - Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

Note 15 - Other expenses:
Rates and taxes
Rent
Insurance Charges
Legal and professional charges
Payment to auditors (refer note below)
Interest on Income-tax
Balance Written off

Miscellaneocus expenses

Notes:
(i) Payments to auditors comprises (exclusive of GST)
(@) To statutory auditors
-statutory audit

Note 16 -~ Earnings per share (EPS):
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share :
Basic/Diluted
Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs 100 each used for
calculation of basic earnings per share (Rs. '000)

Earnings per share (Basic) {Rs. 100 per Share}

Year Ended
March 31,
2023
(Rs. in '000)

1,800.00
T 1,800.00

Year Ended
March 31,
2023
(Rs. in '000)

108.42
108.42

Year Ended

March 31,
M0

(Rs. in '000)

15.39
30.00
184.92
12,70
15.00
10.00
0.55
268.56

15.00
15.00

Year Ended
March 31,
2023
(Rs. in '000)

1,069.68
30.00

35.66

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

(Rs. in '000)

1,800.00
1,800.00

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

(Rs. in '000)

108.42
108.42

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

(Rs. in '000)

7.53
30.00
264.36
174.00
10.00
0.25
9.14
495.27

10.00
10.00

Year Ended
March 31, 2022

(Rs. in '000)

894.98
30.00

29.83
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FERMENTA BIOTECH (UK ) LTD
Registered number: 03308303
Directors' Report

The directors present their report and accounts for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal activities
The company's principal activity during the year was to pursue the research and development
programme on Phenyramidol.

However, having undertaken a critical review of the development on Phenyramidol project and an
independent advice from a Patent and Trade Mark Attorney, it was sadly concluded that to persue
further research and development on this project would be uncommercial and hence the board has
decided to stop the project and write off all the costs to profit and loss account incurred todate.

Directors
The following persons served as directors during the year:

Mr Satish Varma
Mr Srikant Sharma

Directors’ responsibilities
The directors are responsible for preparing the report and accounts in accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the accounts in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under
company law the directors must not approve the accounts unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for
that period. In preparing these accounts, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show
and explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the accounts comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and
hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other itregularities.

Disclosure of information to auditors
Each person who was a director at the time this report was approved confirms that:

e so far as he is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company's auditor is
unaware; and

o he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditor is aware of
that information.

Small company provisions
This report has been prepared in accordance with the provisions in Part 15 of the Companies Act
2006 applicable to companies subject to the small companies regime.



FERMENTA BIOTECH (UK) LTD
Registered number: 03308303
Directors’ Report

This report was approved by the board on

Mr S Sharma
Director

/2023 and signed on its behalf.
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FERMENTA BIOTECH (U K) LTD
Independent auditor’'s report
to the members of FERMENTA BIOTECH (U K) LTD

9/5/23

Opinion

We have audited the accounts of FERMENTA BIOTECH ( U K ) LTD for the year ended 31 March 2023 which comprise
the Profit and Loss Account, the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity and notes to the accounts, including
a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation
is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and the Republic of Ireland’ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

In our opinion the accounts:
e give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 March 2023 and of its loss for the year then
ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;
e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the accounts
section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and the provisions available for small
entities, in the circumstances set out below, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

In accordance with the exemption provided by FRC's Ethical Standard - Provisions Available for Audits of Small Entities,
we have prepared and submitted the company’s returns to the tax authorities and assisted with the preparation of the
accounts.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK) require us to report to you
where:

e the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the accounts is not appropriate; or

e the directors have not disclosed in the accounts any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
about the company'’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve
months from the date when the accounts are authorised for issue.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the report and accounts, other than the accounts and our
auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the accounts does not
cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the accounts, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the accounts or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the accounts or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
e the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the accounts are prepared is consistent
with the accounts; and

e the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.



FERMENTA BIOTECH (UK) LTD
Independent auditor’s report
to the members of FERMENTA BIOTECH (UK ) LTD

9/5/23

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit,
we have not identified material misstatements in the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
report to you if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

e the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
e certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

= the directors were not entitled to prepare the accounts in accordance with the small companies regime and take
advantage of the small companies’ exemptions in preparing the directors’ report and from the requirement to prepare
a strategic report.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the
accounts and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the accounts, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the accounts as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these accounts.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the accounts is located on the Financial Reporting Councit's
website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Harsh Kantilal Ondhia

(Senior Statutory Auditor) Charter House
for and on behalf of 8-10 Station Road
Lall Ondhia Ltd Manor Park
Accountants and Statutory Auditors London

/2023 E12 5BT



FERMENTA BIOTECH (UK) LTD
Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Administrative expenses

Operating loss

Loss on ordinary activities before taxation

Tax on loss on ordinary activities

Loss for the financial year

2023 2022
£ £
(1,260) (1,260)
(1,260) (1,260)
(1,260) (1,260)
(1,260) (1,260)

9/5/23



FERMENTA BIOTECH (U K) LTD
Registered number: 03308303
Balance Sheet

as at 31 March 2023

Notes 2023
£
Current assets
Debtors 4 227
Cash at bank and in hand 40,064
40,291

Creditors: amounts falling due

within one year 5 {6,280)
Net current assets 34,011
Net assets 34,011

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 220,001
Profit and loss account (185,990)
Shareholders’ funds 34,011

2022
£
227
40,124
40,351
(5,080)
35,271

35,271

220,001
(184,730)

35,271

The accounts have been prepared and delivered in accordance with the special provisions
applicable to companies subject to the small companies regime. The profit and loss account has not

been delivered to the Registrar of Companies.

Mr S Varma
Director
Approved by the board on /2023
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FERMENTA BIOTECH (UK) LTD
Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with
FRS 102, The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (as
applied to small entities by section 1A of the standard).

Turnover

Turnover is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of discounts
and value added taxes. Turnover includes revenue earned from the sale of goods and from the
rendering of services. Turnover from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods have transferred to the buyer. Turnover from the rendering
of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract. The stage of
completion of a contract is measured by comparing the costs incurred for work performed to date
to the total estimated contract costs.

Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are measured at cost less accumulative amortisation and any accumulative
impairment losses.

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Listed investments are measured at fair value. Unlisted
investments are measured at fair value unless the value cannot be measured reliably, in which
case they are measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Changes in fair value
are included in the profit and loss account.

Debtors

Short term debtors are measured at transaction price (which is usually the invoice price), less any
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts. Loans and other financial assets are initially
recognised at transaction price including any transaction costs and subsequently measured at
amortised cost determined using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts.

Creditors

Short term creditors are measured at transaction price (which is usually the invoice price). Loans
and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at transaction price net of any transaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortised cost determined using the effective interest method.




oon 9/5/23

FERMENTA BIOTECH (UK)LTD
Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Taxation

A current tax liability is recognised for the tax payable on the taxable profit of the current and past
periods. A current tax asset is recognised in respect of a tax loss that can be carried back to
recover tax paid in a previous period. Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences
between the recognition of income and expenses in the financial statements and their inclusion in
tax assessments. Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or
other future taxable profits. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates and laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and that are expected to apply to the
reversal of the timing difference, except for revalued land and investment property where the tax
rate that applies to the sale of the asset is used. Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are
not discounted.

Provisions

Provisions (ie liabilities of uncertain timing or amount) are recognised when there is an obligation
at the reporting date as a result of a past event, it is probable that economic benefit will be
transferred to settle the obligation and the amount of the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Pensions
Contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed in the period to which they relate.

2 Audit information

The audit report is unqualified.

Senior statutory auditor: Harsh Kantilal Ondhia

Firm: Lall Ondhia Ltd

Date of audit report: /2023

3 Exceptional items 2023 2022

£ £

The directors have decided to write off Patent and Research and 117,657

Development cost totalling £117,657 incurred to date based on

negative expert opinion on the commercial viability and hence

have ceased further activity on the project.
- 117,657
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FERMENTA BIOTECH (UK) LTD
Notes to the Accounts
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4 Debtors 2023 2022
£ £

Other debtors 227 227

5 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 2023 2022
£ £

Other creditors 6,280 5,080

6 Controlling party

The holding company, Fermenta Biotech Ltd registered in India, controls the company by virtue of
holding 100% of the issued shares capital.

7 Other information

FERMENTA BIOTECH ( U K ) LTD is a private company limited by shares and incorporated in
England. lts registered office is:

Charter House

8-10 Station Road

Manor Park

London

E12 5BT

10



FERMENTA BIOTECH (UK) LTD
Detailed profit and loss account

for the year ended 31 March 2023
This schedule does not form part of the statutory accounts

Administrative expenses

Operating loss

Loss before tax

2023

(1,260)

I r=f 9/5/23

2022

(1,260)

(1,260)

(1,260)

{1,260)

{1,260)

11



FERMENTA BIOTECH (UK LTD
Detailed profit and loss account

for the year ended 31 March 2023
This schedule does not form part of the statutory accounts

Administrative expenses
General administrative expenses:
Bank charges

Legal and professional costs:
Accountancy fees

12

2023 2022
£ £

60 60

60 60
1,200 1,200
1,200 1,200
1,260 1,260

9/5/23
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Fermenta Biotech USA LLC
Consolidated Financial Information
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Consolidated balance sheets

(All amounts stated in United States Dollars, unless

otherwise stated)

Assets

Non-current assets
Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Deferred tax assets, net
Total non-current assets

Current assets

Inventories, net

Financial assets
Trade receivables, net of allowances
Cash and cash equivalents

Other current assets

Total current assets

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Equity

Member's equity

Accumulated deficit

Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Total non current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Notes

19

10

11

As of

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

900,845 900,845
318,503 437,942

- 139,682
1,219,348 1,478,469
721,969 1,338,453
243,433 654,036
184,433 217,811
50,939 45,588
1,200,774 2,255,888
2,420,122 3,734,357
1,600,000 1,600,000
(1,029,693) (610,380)
570,307 989,620
(370,259) (90,064)
200,048 899,556
850,000 850,000
850,000 850,000
1,317,083 1,971,527
52,991 13,274
1,370,074 1,984,801
2,220,074 2,834,801
2,420,122 3,734,357

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial information)



Fermenta Biotech USA LLC
Consolidated Financial Information
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Consolidated statements of profit and loss
(All amounts in stated United States Dollars, unless otherwise
stated)

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total revenue

Changes in inventories of traded goods
Purchase of traded goods

Employee benefits expense
Amortization expense

Finance costs

Other expenses

Total expenses

Operating loss

Loss before tax
Deferred tax expense (benefit)
Net loss for the year, net of tax

Net loss attributable to:

Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interest

Notes

12
13

14

15
16
17
18

19

For the year ended

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

4,421,789 4,696,135
- 100,000
4,421,789 4,796,135
616,484 (620,627)
3,134,980 4,367,261
377,501 347,581
119,439 119,439
42,500 13,274
690,711 822,008
4,981,615 5,048,936
(559,826) (252,801)
(559,826) (252,801)
139,682 (34,278)
(699,508) (218,523)
(419,313) (163,263)
(280,195) (55,260)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial information)



Fermenta Biotech USA LLC
Consolidated Financial Information
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Consolidated statements of cash flows

(All amounts stated in United States Dollars, unless otherwise
stated)

A. Operating activities
Loss before tax
Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Amortization expense
Finance costs
Working capital adjustments:
Inventories

Trade receivable
Other current assets
Trade payables
Other financial liabilities
Net cash flows used in operating activities (A)

C. Financing activities
Proceeds of loan from related party

Net cash provided by financing activities (©)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
Cash and cash equivalents at the end

For the year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2023

(A+B+C)

(559,826) (252,801)
119,439 119,439
42,500 13,274
616,484 (620,627)
410,603 527,986
(5,351) (5,763)
(654,444) (791,438)
(2,783) -
(33,378) (1,009,930)
- 850,000
- 850,000
(33,378) (159,930)
217,811 377,741
184,433 217,811

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial information)



Fermenta Biotech USA LLC

Consolidated Financial Information
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Consolidated statements of changes in equity
(All amounts stated in United States Dollars except number of shares, unless otherwise stated)

Attributable to the equity holders of the parent

Accumulated

Total member's

Non-controlling

Particulars Member's equity deficit equity interest Total equity

For the year ended March 31, 2022

As of April 01, 2021 1,600,000 (447,117) 1,152,883 (34,804) 1,118,079

Loss for the year - (163,263) (163,263) (55,260) (218,523)
As of March 31, 2022 1,600,000 (610,380) 989,620 (90,064) 899,556

For the year ended March 31, 2023

As of April 01, 2022 1,600,000 (610,380) 989,620 (90,064) 899,556

Loss for the year - (419,313) (419,313) (280,195) (699,508)
As of March 31, 2023 1,600,000 (1,029,693) 570,307 (370,259) 200,048

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial information)



Fermenta Biotech USA LLC
Consolidated Financial Information
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

NOTE 1- ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Fermenta Biotech USA LLC (“FBUL” or “the Company” or "the Parent Company") incorporated on May
27, 2020 in the State of Texas, United States, is a holding company. Fermenta Biotech Limited (“FBL
India”) a public listed India company, is the Ultimate Parent Company of FBUL.

On December 01, 2020, the Company acquired 52% membership interest in AGD Nutrition LLC (“the
subsidiary” or “the acquiree”), a company based in Texas for a total consideration of $ 1,291,251. AGD
Nutrition LLC is engaged in the business of marketing and developing nutritional ingredients used in
feed, food, pharmaceutical, and nutraceutical applications.

On December 09, 2020, the name of the subsidiary was changed to Fermenta USA LLC.
The Company conducts business through its subsidiary, namely, Fermenta USA LLC (“FUSA”).

These Consolidated Financial Information comprise the Parent Company and its subsidiary (together
referred to as "the Group"), the details of which are set out above.

The Consolidated Financial Information has been prepared in conformity with the accounting policies of
Fermenta Biotech Limited, which are in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles of
Indian Accounting Standard notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (‘the Act’) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. The Consolidated Financial Information have been
prepared to facilitate the FBL India in preparation of its consolidated financial statements. The
Consolidated Financial Information includes the disclosures as required under Ind AS to the extent it
facilitates and is applicable for preparation of FBL India’s consolidated financial statements.

NOTE2- GOODWILL

On December 01, 2020, the Company acquired 52% of the membership of AGD Nutrition LLC, a
company based in Texas for a total consideration of $ 1,291,251.

The Company elected to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree at the proportionate share of
its interest in the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was $ 900,845.
As of
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Balance at beginning 900,845 900,845

Additional amounts  recognized from  business
combinations during the year - -

Balance at end 900,845 900,845




Fermenta Biotech USA LLC
Consolidated Financial Information
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

NOTE3- OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As of
Customer relationships March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Gross block
Opening balance 597,194 597,194
Additions - -
Closing balance 597,194 597,194
Amortisation
Opening balance 159,252 39,813
Amortisation 119,439 119,439
Closing balance 278,691 159,252
Net book value 318,503 437,942

Other intangible assets include Customer Relationships acquired through business combinations. The
useful life of the Customer Relationships is estimated to be 5 years.

NOTE 4- INVENTORIES

As of
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Traded goods 721,969 1,338,453
721,969 1,338,453

Goods-in-transit included in the inventory balance is $101,442 as of March 31, 2023. (March 31, 2022:
$666,816)

NOTE5- TRADE RECEIVABLES

As of

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Unsecured trade receivables
Undisputed, considered good 187,734 654,036
Related party receivables 55,699 -

243,433 654,036
Particulars Outstanding for following periods
from due date of payment
Less than 6 months Upto 1 year Total

(i) Undisputed trade receivables — considered good
March 31, 2023 187,734 - 187,734
March 31, 2022 654,036 - 654,036

(ii) Related party receivables
March 31, 2023 41,199 14,500 55,699
March 31, 2022 - - -



Fermenta Biotech USA LLC
Consolidated Financial Information
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

NOTE6- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Balances with banks

NOTE7- OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid expenses
Others

NOTE 8- MEMBER'S EQUITY AND OTHER EQUITY

A  MEMBER'S EQUITY

At the beginning
Member's contribution during the year
Outstanding at the end

B Accumulated deficit

Accumulated deficit

At the beginning of the year
Loss for the year

Balance at the end of the year

NOTE 9- BORROWINGS

Loan from related party (Unsecured)

As of
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
184,433 217,811
184,433 217,811
As of
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
50,489 45,138
450 450
50,939 45,588
As of
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,600,000 1,600,000
1,600,000 1,600,000
As of
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(610,380) (447,117)
(419,313) (163,263)
(1,029,692) (610,380)
As of
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
850,000 850,000
850,000 850,000

On December 08, 2021, the Company has obtained a borrowing in the amount of $ 850,000 from the
Ultimate Parent Company. The interest rate on this borrowing is 5% compounded annually, payable
annually on 31st day of December. The term length of the loan is upto February 01, 2033. The interest
expense for the year amounted to $ 42,500 (March 31, 2022: $ 13,274).
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Fermenta Biotech USA LLC
Consolidated Financial Information
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

NOTE 10- TRADE PAYABLES

Due of related parties (Refer Note 20)
Dues of creditors other than MSME

Particulars

As of
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

March 31, 2023 814,903

1,241,516 1,862,939
75,567 108,588
1,317,083 1,971,527
Outstanding for following periods
from due date of payment
Less than 6 months Upto 1 year Total
502,180 1,317,083
1,744,788 226,739 1,971,527

March 31, 2022

NOTE 11- OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Accrued payroll tax liability

NOTE 12- REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Sale of products
Commission income

Disaggregated revenue information

Revenue recognized at a point in time

NOTE 13- OTHER INCOME

Insurance claim received

As of
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

52,979 13,274
12 -
52,991 13,274

For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

4,389,234 4,696,135
32,555 -
4,421,789 4,696,135
4,421,789 4,696,135
4,421,789 4,696,135

For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

- 100,000

- 100,000

11



Fermenta Biotech USA LLC
Consolidated Financial Information
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

NOTE 14- CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF TRADED GOODS

Opening inventory
Traded goods

(A)
Closing inventory
Traded goods

(B)

Decrease (increase) in inventory (C) = (A) - (B)

NOTE 15- EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries and wages

NOTE 16- AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Amortization of intangible assets (Refer Note 3)

NOTE 17- FINANCE COSTS

Interest on loan

NOTE 18- OTHER EXPENSES

Freight and forwarding charges
Commission on sales
Professional and legal fees
Payment to auditors (Refer note below)
Insurance

Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery

Postage and telephone

Rent

Miscellaneous expenses

Bank charges

Bad debt expense

For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1,338,453 717,826
1,338,453 717,826
721,969 1,338,453
721,969 1,338,453
616,484 (620,627)
For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

377,501 347,581
377,501 347,581
For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
119,439 119,439
119,439 119,439

For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

42,500 13,274

42,500 13,274

For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

377,725 388,719
18,245 9,771
104,592 129,260
25,506 24,000
59,337 60,245
17,617 6,205
3,321 1,005
9,477 6,277
19,230 19,412
55,615 31,524
46 113

- 145,477
690,711 822,008

12



Fermenta Biotech USA LLC
Consolidated Financial Information
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Details of payments to auditors:

Particulars
Payment to auditors
As auditor:

Audit fees

Total

NOTE 19- TAXATION

Tax expense (benefit)

(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss
Current tax

Deferred tax expense (benefit)

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Loss before tax

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate: 21%)
Tax effect of:

Meals and entertainment

Loss allocable to non-controlling interest

Virtual uncertainty

Tax expense (benefit) as per profit or loss

(c) Movement in deferred tax balances
Deferred tax asset

Identified intangibles

Net operating loss

Interest expense - IRC Sec 267

Deferred tax liabilities

Goodwill
Deferred tax assets not recognised

Net deferred tax assets

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
25,506 24,000
25,506 24,000

For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
139,682 (34,278)
139,682 (34,278)
(559,826) (252,801)
(117,563) (53,087)
1,654 -
52,478 18,809

203,113 -
139,682 (34,278)
20,289 11,594
201,126 144,905

11,126 -
232,541 156,498
(29,428) (16,816)

(203,113) -
(232,541) (16,816)
- 139,682

Space intentionally left blank
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Fermenta Biotech USA LLC
Consolidated Financial Information

March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022
NOTE 20- RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party relationships are as follows:

Ultimate Parent Company:
Fermenta Biotech Limited

Associate Company:
Fermenta Biotech GmBH

Non-controlling interest holder:
Reyn Capital LLC

For the year ended

Nature of transaction Name of related party March 31, 2023  March 31, 2022
Purchases of products Fermenta Biotech Limited 1,735,537 2,664,036
Commission income/ purchases Fermenta Biotech GmBH 32,555 324,225
of products
Expenses incurred on behalf of Fermenta Biotech Limited - 3,000
the Company
Expenses incurred on behalf of Fermenta Biotech GmBH 53,199 2,500
the Company
Balances as of March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

As of
Particulars Name of related party March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Trade payables Fermenta Biotech Limited 1,241,516 1,538,714
Trade payables Fermenta Biotech GmBH - 324,225
Trade receivables Fermenta Biotech GmBH 55,699 -

Space intentionally left blank



Fermenta Biotech USA LLC
Consolidated Financial Information
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

NOTE 21- FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIE1

The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Group's financial risk management is an
integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Board of Directors review and agree
policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may result from adverse
changes in market rates and prices (such as interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices
and equity price risk). Market risk is attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments, all foreign
currency receivables and payables and all short term and long-term borrowings. The Company is exposed to
market risks related to foreign exchange rate risk, commodity rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks,
such as equity price risks. Thus, the Group’s exposure to market risk is a function of borrowing activities,
revenue generating and operating activities in foreign currencies.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates
relates primarily to the Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign
currency). The Group does majority of its transaction in its functional currency which is USD. Accordingly, the
Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss, if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations and arises principally from the Group's receivables from customers, loans and other
financial assets. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously
monitoring the creditworthiness of counterparty to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of
business. Cash balances in bank accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”)
up to $250,000 for each insured bank for each account per depositor.

The following table details the Group's exposure to credit risk

Particulars As of

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade receivables 243,433 654,036
Cash and cash equivalents 184,433 217,811
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to settle or meet its obligations as they fall due. The
Group's policy on liquidity risk is to maintain sufficient liquidity in the form of cash and investment in liquid
banks deposits to meet the Group's operating requirements with an appropriate level of headroom. In addition,
processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the
Group's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual
undiscounted payments
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Consolidated Financial Information
March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Particulars Total Upto 1 year|1 to 3 years|3to 5 years > ﬁ)?;fe&
As of March 31, 2023

Trade payable 1,317,083| 1,277,467 39,616 - -
Borrowings 850,000 - - - 850,000
As of March 31, 2022

Trade payable 1,971,527 1,744,788 226,739 - -
Borrowings 850,000 - - - 850,000

Impact of COVID 19

The macro economic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic is uncertain, and continues to evolve, with potential
disruption to financial markets including to currencies, interest rates, borrowing costs and the availability of
debt financing. In addition, global stress in the markets brought on by the COVID-19 crisis is being felt
globally through lack of liquidity in foreign funding markets. In this environment, the Group has already taken
measures to manage its liquidity and capital carefully until the crisis is over. The Group’s management has been
closely monitoring the cash flows and forecasts on a timely manner to maintain a reasonably healthy balance
sheet during this time and beyond. As at the date of signature of these consolidated financial information,
management notes that the Group has sufficient liquidity to meet its obligations as they become due and that
there are no doubts surrounding the Group's ability to continue as a going concern for the foreseeable future.
Further, the Group would be supported by the Ultimate Parent Company if required in order to ensure sufficient
liquidity and ability to continue as a going concern.

Management has assessed that the COVID-19 outbreak will not have a material adverse impact on the future
results of the Group and accordingly no impairment indicators on the Group's non-financial assets exist as of
March 31, 2023.

NOTE 22- CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Group’s capital management, capital includes member's equity and accumulated deficit.
The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to maximise the value of its members.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and
the requirements of the financial covenants.

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to:

« safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for
members and benefits for other stakeholders, and

* maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of distributions to member
or return capital to its member. The Group monitors capital for consistency with others in the industry.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity plus net debt. The
Group includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents,
excluding discontinued operations.

The Ultimate Parent Company will continue to provide financial support to the Group to meet its capital
requirements.
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March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

As of

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Borrowings (Refer note 9) 850,000 850,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 6) (184,433) (217,811)
Net debt - A 665,567 632,189
Equity (Member's equity + Accumulated deficit + Non- 200,048 899,556
controlling interest)

Total Equity - B 200,048 899,556
Capital and netdebt (A+B)=C 865,615 1,531,745
Gearing ratio - C/A 130% 242%

NOTE 23- EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent events have been evaluated through the date the financial statements were available to be issued.
Based on the evaluation, the Company is not aware of any events or transactions that would require recognition

or disclosure in the financial statements.
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FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
Statement Of Balance Sheet And Profit And Loss Of The Component

Balance Sheet as at 31.03.2023

Amount IN EUR

> For the year ended | For the year ended
Fantiollars Hote No Mar 31, 2023 Mar 31, 2022
| ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, plant and equipment 3 - -
(b) Capital work-In-progress 4 - .
(¢ ) Right-of-use assets 5 - ”
(d) Investment property 6 = =
(e ) Goodwill - -
(f) Other Intangible assets 7 11.901,84 348.626,00
(g) Intangible assets under development 8 - -
(h) Investments
i) Investments In subsidiaries 9A - -
ii) Investments in an associate 9B - -
(l) Financial assets
(i) Investments 9C - -
(ii) Share application money 10 - -
(iii) Loans 11 -
(iv) Other financlal assets 12 - .
(J) Deferred tax assets (net) 48C - -
(k) Non-current tax assets (net) 13 - -
(J) Other non-current assets 14 - -
11.901,84 348.626,00
(2) Current assets
(a) Inventories 15 1.777.462,00 3.026.719,88
(b) Financial Assets
(1) Investments
(i) Trade receivables 16 132.232,00 627.550,86
(ili) Cash and cash equivalents 17 1456.342,60 96.587,36
(iv) Bank balances other than (jii) above 18 - -
(v) Loans 19 - -
(vi) Others (to be specified) 20 - -
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net)
(d) Other current assets 21 219.919,36 152.002,78
2.274.955,96 3.902.860,88
Total Assets 2.286.857,80 4.251.486,88
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 22 1.000.000,00 25.,000,00
(b) Other Equity 23 (4.891.945,08) (2.000.545,91)
(3.891.945,08) (1.975.545,91)
Equity attributable to the owners of the company (3.891.945,08) (1.975.545,91)
Non Controlling Interest
(3.891.945,08) (1.975.545,91)
Liabllitles
(1) Non-current llabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
(I) Borrowings 24 - -
(i) Lease liabilities 25 - -
(lily Other financial liabilities 46 - -
(b) Provisions 26 - -
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
(d) Other non-current liabilities 27 - -
(2)  Current labllitles
(a) Financial liabilities
(I) Borrowings 28 - -
(Il) Lease liabilities 46 - -
(lll) Trade payables
A) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterpries and 29 & 52 - -
B) Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small enterpries an| 29 5.929.271,00 6.053.770,75
(lv) Other financial liabllities 30 - -
(b) Other current liabllities 31 24.,748,81 143.472,04
(c) Provisions 32 224.783,07 29,790,00
(d) Current Tax Liabllities (Net) 33 - -
6.178.802,88 6.227.032,79
Total Equity and Llabllities 2,286.867,80 4.251.486,88

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
Stralenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg



Annexure Il
Statement Of Balance Sheet And Profit And Loss Of The Component
FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
Amount IN EUR

Quarter ended Year ended

For Quarter ended | For Quarter ended | For Quarter ended | For the year ended For the year ended

Rartluclars Note No 31,03.2023 31.12.2022 31.03.2022 31,03.2023 31,03.2022
A B C A B
I |Revenue from Operations 34 -9.192,47 558.141,09 308.705,24 921.518,53 1.005.804,72
Il |other income 35 22.403,37 4.674,86 : 58.484,76 443300
I |Total Income (1+ll) 13.210,90 562.815,95 308.706,24 980.003,29 1.010.237,72

IV |Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 36 1.161.901,01 107.461,49 -417.428,26 2.731.718,86 1.240.131,65
Purchase of stock in trade - - - =

Changes in inventaries of finished

goods, stockin-trade and workin| a7 -662.266,70 582,935,20 749.728,55 32.551,20 313.453,45
progress

Employee benefits expense 38 34.584,78 34.447,62 34.447,62 138.045,61 117.597,42
Finance costs 39 - N < = &
gf;’;gf“"“ and  amortisalion) 4, 952,96 277.956,03 28.589,98 336.724,16 115.947,85
Other expenses 41 137.186,81 205.138,24 147.750,10 632.362,63 726.240,01
Total Expenses (IV) 572,360,6 7.207.938,58 543.067,99 3.871,402,46 2.513,370,38

Profit / (loss) before exceptional

items and tax (lll-IV) -669.147,96 -646.122,63 -234.382,75 -2.891.399,17 -1.503.132,66

VI  |Exceptional items
VIl |Profit / (loss) before tax (V-VI) -659.147,96 -645.122,63 -234.382,76 -2.891.399,17 -1.503.132,66

VIl |Tax expense:
1) Current tax
2) Deferred tax 48C

Profit / (loss) for the period from N g g
X | continuing operations (VII-Vil) 659.147,96 645,122,63 234.382,76 2.891.399,17 -1.503.132,66

Profit / (loss) from discontinued
operations before tax
Tax expense of discontinued

X
operations

Profit / (loss) from Discontinued

x operations (after tax) (X-XI)

Xill g;ﬂg‘(‘m' (loss) for the period -659.147,96 -645.122,63 -234,382,76 -2,891.399,17 1,603.132,66

XIV |Other Comprehensive Income
A (l) nems wmnar wil not pe

ranlaccifiad tn neafit Ar lnee
(i) Income lax relating lo items|
that will not be reclassified to profit

or loss
o (I} Ilems nat may pe rec )}
tn nrafit Ar lnee

(i) Income lax relating to items|
that may be reclassified to profit or
loss
lotal comprehensive income tor|

the period (XIlI+XIV) (Comprising

XV profit (Loss) and  Other 8ap.147,98 645.122,63 234.382,76 2.891.399,17 -1.503,132,66

Comnrahansiva Incoma for the

Profit for the year attributable to
Owners of the company -669.147,96 -645.122,63 -234.382,75 -2.891.399,17 -1.603.132,66
Non Controlling Interest - - - > =

Total other comprehensive
Income/(Loss) for the year

Owners of the company "
Non Controlling Interest "

Total comprehensive
Income/(Loss) for the vyear

attributable to
Owners of the company -659.147,96 -645,122,63 -234.382,75 -2.891.399,17 -1.503.132,66

Non Controlling Interest - - " - .

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg




FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH f;; /4
CIN:-NA H 2

Standalone Cosh Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023

(' in EUR )
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before lax (2.891.399,17) (608.477,59)
Adjustments for :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 336.724,16 115.947,85
Net unrealised forcign exchange (goin)
Loss on sale / write off, of property, plant and equipment (net)
Allowance for doubtful debts
Share based payments to employees
Finance costs
Interest inconie
Dividend income
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back
Trado reccivable and advances written of’
Net (gain)/Loss on fair value changes of derivatives measured at FVTPL
Operating profit before worling capital changes (2.554.675,01) (492.529,74)
Movements in working capital:
(Increase) in trade receivables 495.318,86 (612.270,86)
Decrense/(increasc) in inventories 1.249.257,88 368.299,12
(Increase) / decrease in other assels (67.916,58) (136.878,45)
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables (124.499,75) 3.146.874,80
Increase in provisions 194.993,07 29.790,00
(Decrease) / increase in other liabilities (118.723,23) 143.472,04
(926,244,76) 2.446,756,91
Income taxes paid
Net cash generated from operntion (A) (926.244,76) 2.446.756,91

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for purchose of property, plant and equipment, investment property, capilal work-in-progress, - 95.843,85
i ible assets and i assets under d ’

P

Procceds on sale of property, plant and equipment

Intercorporate deposits rececived back

Interest reccived

Loan given to a subsidiary

Purchaose of investments in a subsidiary

Dividend received

Deposits (placed with) /received back from a finoneial institution (net)

Deposits received back from /(placed with) banks not considered as cash and cash equivalents (net)

Net cash used in investing nctivities (B) - 95.843,85
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from long term borrowings . (2.116.017,70)
Repayment of long term borrowings (335.000,00)
Net Increase in short term borrowings

Increase in share capital 975.000,00 »
Repayment of Lease Liabilities

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activitics (C) 975,000,00 (2.451,017,70)
Net (decrense) / increase in cash and cash equivnlents (A)+(B)+(C) 48.755,24 91.583,06
Cash and cash equivalents of the beginning of the year 96.587,36 5.004,15
Cash nnd cash equivalents nt the end of the year 145.342,60 96.587,21

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with banks
In current accounts 145.342,60 96.587,21

In deposits accaunts with original maturity for less than 3 months

Cash ond cash equivolents (Refer Note 17) 145.342,60 96.587,21

Cash credit and Bank overdrafl facilities included under loans repayable on demand (Refer Note 28)
Total cnsh and cash equivalents considered for cash flows 145.342,60 96.587,21

See nccompnnying notes to the Standalone financinl statements 1-70

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg



FERMENTA BIOTECH GMDH
CIN:--NA
Standulone Stafement of Changes In Equlty for the year ended March 31, 2023

b

(@) Equltyshure capital (inEUR)
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Balance af the beginning of the year 25,000,00 25.000,00
Add: Tssue of shares pursuant to scheme of amalgamation = :
Add: Issue of shares 975.000,00 N
Balance at the end of the year 1.000.000,00 25,0000
(b) Other equity
Ttems of uther
Reserves and Surplus comprehensive Total
Incame
Capltal reserve Sharc optlons Equity
Unreallsed Capital
":f‘"d"fl‘"s:“) mhmp:‘lg"“mcm pursuant to Cupital reserve | Generul reserve | outstanding Retained enrnlngs Instruments
amalgamation account through OCIT
(497.413,25), (497.413,25),

Dalance as at April 01, 2021

Profit for the year

Recogrition of share based payments
Other comprehensive income for the year

(1.503.132,66)

(1.503.132,66),

Bulance s at March 31,2022 - -
Profit for the year

Payment of dividend (Gross)
Recognition of share based payments
Other comprehensive income for the year

(2.000.545,91),
(2.891.399,17))

(2.000.545,91)
(2.891.399,17)

F]\llmun "2 at March 31, 2023 = s

(4.891.945,08),

(1.891.945,08),

*Represents remeasurcmient of defined benefit plan
See accompanying notes [-70 to the Standalone financial statements

Tn terms of our report altached

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
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FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH ”
CIN-NA f IJ <

Notes fo the Standalone financlal statements for the yenr ended March 31,2023
('inEUR)
3 Praperty, plant and cquipment

Furniture and Tolal

Vehleles Leaschold Improvements
fistures

Particulars Frechold land Buildings Plant and equipment

Al cast or deemied cost as at April 01,2021 -
Additions =
Disposals =
Balance as at March 31,2022 - - - - - - B
Additions B
Disposals
Bnlnnce as at March 31,2023 - - - - & “ %

Accumulated depreclation
As at April 01, 2021 - -
Depreciation expense -
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31,2022 - - o 4| ] i ]

Deprecialion expense &
Disposals .

DBalance ns at March 31, 2023 - - - - & = -

Carrylng amount
As at March 31,2022 - - . . - - =
As at March 31,2023 - - ] - - - -

Fermenta BIOTECH Gn:)l;ﬂ
clo InterGest Germany Gm

StraBenbahnring 13
70251 Hamburg
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FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
CIN:-NA

Nofes to the Standalone finnnclal statements for the year ended March 31,2023

4 Capital work-In-progress

March 31,2023

March 31,2022

Project in progress

Projects temporarily suspended

Totnl

Ageing of Capltal worlein-progress

FhL

(" inEUR)

Capital worle-In-progress

Less than I Year

1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 yenrs

Total

Balance as at darch 31,2022

Project in progress

Projects temporarly suspended

Balonce as at March 31,2023

Project in progress

Projects lemporarily suspended

CWIP campletion schedule for project overduc: as at March 31,2023

To be completed in

Project overduc

Less than 1 Year

1-2 years 2-3 years

More than 3 years

Total

Capacity enhancement of Biotech Plant at Kullu Plant

Moditication of existing Admin office and expansion of ground floor
ol Dahej plant

Others

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH

StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg



FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
CIN:-NA

Noles (o the Standulone financlal statements for the year ended March 31,2023

5  Right-ol-Use Assels

kbl

(" inEUR)

Parliculars

Leaschold Innd

Buildings

Vehlecles

Tolal

At cost as at April 01,2021
Additions
Disposals

Balance ns at March 31,2022

Additions
Disposals

Bulance as at March 31,2023

Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2021
Depreciation expense
Disposals

Balance ns at March 31,2022

Depreciation expense
Disposals

Balnnce as nt March 31,2023

Carrylog smount

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31,2023

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg



FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
CIN:- NA

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

6 Investment property

iz

(*inEUR)

Particulars

Freehold land

Buildings

Plant and equipment

Total

At cost or deemed cost as at April 01,2021
Additions

Balance as at March 31,2022

Additions
Disposal

Balance as at March 31, 2023

Accumulated depreciation
As at April 01, 2021

Depreciation expense

Balance as at March 31, 2022

Depreciation expense

Balance as at March 31, 2023

Currying nmount

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2023

Note 5, - Goodwill

Narch 31,2023

March 31,2022

Deemed cost

A lated impairment losses

Title deeds of immoyable property not held in the name of the company:

Releyant line item in the Balance Sheet

Description of item
of property

Gross Value off
property

Title deed held in the name
of

Whether title deed
holder is a promoter,
director or relative of
promoter/director or

employce of
promoter/director

Property held
since which date

Reason for not being held in the
name of the campany

Investment property

\

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH

c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg




FERMENTA BIOTECH GNBH
CIN:- NA

ik

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

7 Other Intangible nssets (" inEUR)
Particulnrs Computer software Product know -how Total
At cost or deemed cost as at April 01, 2021 23,185,00 560.417,85 583,602,85
Additions = &
Balance as at March 31, 2022 23.185,00 560.417,85 583.602,85
Additions = -
Balance as at March 31, 2023 23.185,00 560.417,85 583.602,85
Accumulated amortisation
As at April 01,2021 3.864,35 115,164,65 119.029,00
Amortisation expense 3,567,713 112.380,12 115.947,85
Balance ns at March 31, 2022 7.432,08 227.544,77 234,976,85
Amortisation expense 3.851,08 332.873,08 336.724,16
Balance ns at March 31, 2023 11,283,16 560.417,85 571.701,01
Carrying amount
As at March 31, 2022 15.752,92 332.873,08 348.626,00
As at March 31, 2023 11.901,84 - 11,901,84

8 Intangible nssets under development
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Project in progress
Projects temporarily suspended
Total = =
Ageing of Intangible nssets under development
Intangible nssets under development Less than 1 Yenr 1-2 years 2-3 yenrs Move than 3 years Total

Balance as at March 31, 2022

Project in progress

Projects temporarily suspended

Balance as nt March 31, 2023

Project in progress

Projects temporarily suspended

to original plans.

There is no varialion in respect of assets/projects forming part of intangible assets under development and which have become overdue compared to their original plans or where cost is exceeded compared

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH

c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg




FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
CIN:- NA
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

kbl

(" inEUR)

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

9A Investments in subsidiaries - in equity instruments unquoted (Fully paid up) (At cost
less impairment in the value of investments, if any)

b)
__Equity shares of * __/- (as at March 31, 202x: __ Equity shares of * _ /- each)

Less: Impairment in the value of investment

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments before impairment

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

Notes
1

A

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg



FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH

CIN:- NA ﬂ z
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 w4
("inEUR)
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

9B Investment in associate - In equity instruments Unquoted (Fully paid up) (At cost [ess
impairment in value of investments, if any)

__Equity shares of * __/- (as at March 31,202x: __ Equity shares of *_ /- each)

Less: Impairment in the value of investment

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments before impairment.

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments.

ermenta BIOTECH GmbH
/o InterGest Germany GmbH
S StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg




FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH B y
CIN:- NA f {
Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 =

(*inEUR)

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

9C Investments (non-current)
Investment in other entities - In equity instruments:

(i) Unquoted Investments (all fully paid up)
Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

__Equity shares of * __/- (as at March 31, 202x: __ Equity shares of " __ /- each)

Less: Impairment in the value of investment

Total aggregate unquoted investments (A) & =

(ii) Quoted Investment (all fully paid)
Investment in equity instruments at FYTOCI

___Equity shares of ' __ /- (as at March 31, 202x: __ Equity shares of " __ /- each)

Total aggregate quoted investments (B) 2 5

Total Non-current investments (A+B) 2 s

Aggregate carrying value of unguoted investments before impairment - -
Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof - -

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments - -

il

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg



FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH

CIN: NA fbé

Notes to the Standnlone financinl statements for the year ended March 31,2023
('inEUR)

10 Share application money

March 31,2023 Mnrch 31,2022

Total = w

—

Loans ( Non-current )

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Loan to employees, considered good - unsecured
Inter corporate deposit - considered doubtful - unsecured
Less : Allowance for doubtful inter corporate deposit

Loan to a subsidiary

Total - =

All Parties Promoters Related Parties

Related Parties

Aggregate of loans/advances in nature of loans

- Repayable on demand (A)

- Agreement does not specify any terms or period of repayment (B)

Total

Percentage of loans /advances in nature of loans to the total loans

* The amounts reported are at gross amounts, without considering provisions made.

Amount outstanding as at year end
Name of entity - (Associate) 8 _
Name of entity - (wholly owned subsidiary) -
Name of entity - (Others) -
Maximum amount outstanding during the year
Name of entity - (Associate) s -
Name of entity - (wholly owned subsidiary) 3
Name of entity - (Others) -
The Inter corporate deposit was granted to an associate and wholly owned subsidiary for the purpose of their business (Refer Note 68)
Movenient in the Allowance for doubtful inter corparate deposit
Balance at the beginning of the year 2 3
Addition during the year - -
Written back during the year - =
Written off during the year 5 =

Balance at the end of the year - -

12 Other financial nssets (Non-current)

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Security deposits

Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months*

Deposits with a financial institution with remaining maturity of more than 12 months #
[nterest accrued but not due from banks

Interest accrued but not due from a financial institution

Others

Total - o

*This includes deposits
kept for fund based bank guarantee with Bank of Baroda
kept for fund based bank guarantee with Union Bank of India
# Fixed deposits are placed with Bajaj Finance Limited
13 Non-current tax assets (net)

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Advance income-tax

Total - -

\

\
\

Q Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
) /o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg
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FERMENTA BIOTECH GNBH .
CIN: NA f’ 5; é
H Az

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the yenr ended March 31, 2023
(*inEUR)

14 Other assets (Non-current)

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Capital advances

Advances recoverable in cash or kind
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances

Deferred rent

Balance with government authorities
Prepaid expenses

Tatal

15 Inventaries

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

(At lower of cost and net renlisable value)

Raw materials and packing materials (includes stock in transit of * EUR) (as at March 31, 2022: "EUR) 187.849,50 1.404.556,18

Work-in-progress (includes stock in transit of * EUR) (as at March 31, 2022: " EUR)
Finished goods (includes stock in transit of * EUR) (as at March 31, 2022: * EUR)

Stores and spares (includes stock in transit of * EUR) (as at March 31, 2022: * EUR)
Tatal 1.777.462,00 3.026.719,88

'\1 (g

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg

1.589.612,50 1.622.163,70




FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
CIN: NA

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the yenr ended March 31,2023

16

Trade receivables (unsecured)

e

(*inEUR)

March 31,2023

March 31,2022

Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant incrense in credit risk

Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired

Disputed Trade Receivables — considered good

Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk
Disputed Trade Receivables — credit Impaired

Less : Allowance for doubtful debts (Expected credit loss allowance)

132.232,00

627.550,86

132,232,00

627.550,86

Total

132,232,00

627.550,86

Ageing of trade receivables as at March 31,2023

Outstanding for the following period from due date of pnyments

Particulars

Not Due

Less than 6 6 months-1 More than 3
1-2 yemrs 2-3 yemrs
maonths year yeirs

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good

132.232,00

132.232,00

(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in
credit risk

iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables— credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit
risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credil Impaired

Total

132.232,00

132.232,00

Ageing of trade receivables i as at March 31, 2022

Outstanding for the following periad from due date of pnyments

Particulms

Not Due

Less than 6 6 months-1 More than 3
1-2 yemrs 2-3 yemrs
months year yemrs

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables ~ considered good

612.270,86

15.280,00

627.550,86

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in
credit risk

iti) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — considered good

(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit
risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit Impaired

Total

612.270,86

- 15.280,00 (0,01) 0,01 -

627.550,86

Movement in the expected credit loss allowance
Balance at the beginning of the year

Addition during the year

Written off during the year

Reversal during the year

Balance at the end af the yenr

\ o
\

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
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FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH —y
CIN: NA f:ﬁ; &

Notes to the Standalone financinl statements for the yenr ended March 31,2023

("inEUR)
17 Cash and cash equivalents
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Balances with banks
In current accounts 145.342,60 96.587,36
In deposit accounts with original maturity for less than 3 months
Cash on hand
Total 145,342,60 96,587,36
18 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Balances with banks
In Unpaid Dividend accounts
In escrow account
In deposit accounts with original maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 months*

Total = .

\\"

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg



FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH

CIN: NA fi)z

Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
('inEUR)
19 Loans (Current)

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Unsecured, considered good

Inter corporate deposit

Loans to employees

Total < -

# The inter-corporate deposits were granted to the entity for the purpose of its business.

20 Other financial nssets (Current)

March 31,2023 March 31,2022

Interest accrued but not due
On fixed deposits from banks
On fixed deposits with a financial institution
On Inter corporate deposits (Refer Note 65)
Deposits with a financial institution
Expenses recoverable from related parties
Interest receivable from a subsidiary
Others
Unsecured, considered good
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Taotal

21  Other current assets

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Advance for supply of goods and services (Refer Note 68 )
Considered good

Considered doubtful
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances

Deferred rent

Prepaid expenses 6.362,17 5.068,03
Unamortised lease rent SLM
Travel advances to employees

Export incentive receivables
Considered good
Considered doubtful

Less: Allowance for doubtful export incentive receivables

Bal with government authorities 213.557,19 146.934,75
Total 219.919,36 152,002,78

Movement in the Allowance for doubtful advances and export incentive receivables.

Balance at the beginning of the year

Addition during the year

Written off during the year

Reversal during the year

Balance at the end of the yenr - =

a)

i\ ermenta BIOTECH GmbH

\ ) 9o InterGest Germany GmbH

StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg
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FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
CIN:NA
Notes ta the Standalone financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

bl

2 Equlty share capital (inEUR)
March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Authordsed
1.000.000,00 25.000,00
1.000.000,00 25.000,00
Tssuedl, subscribed and fully paid-up
Fermenta Biotech Limited (100000 @ 1 EUR) 1.000.000,00 25.000,00
1.000.000,00 25.000,00
() Recanclliation of shares outstanding at the beglaning and at the end of the year
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
No of Equity Shares “In EUR No of Equity Shares “Tn EUR
‘At he beginning of the year 25,000 25.000 25.000 25000
At the end of the year 1.000.000 1,000,000 25.000 25000

05

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
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FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
CIN: NA
Notes to the Standalone finoncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

bl

2 Equity share copltal ("inEUR )
(b) Detalls of shareholders holding more than 5% equity shares [n the Campany
Namie of the sharehalders March 31,2023 March 31,2022
No. of Equity Shares % Halding No. of Equity Shares % Holding
Fermenta Biotech Limited 1,000,000 10034 25.000 100%,
(c) Shares held by Holding Compuny
Out ol the equity shares issuicd by the Company, shares held by its Holding Company arc as below:
Nome of the sharzholders March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
\ No. of Equlty Shares % Holding No. of Equity Shures % Holding
Fermenta Biotech Lirmited 1.000.000 100,00%) 25.000 100,003
() Detalls of Shures held by promoters at the end of the year
Nume of promoters Murch 31,2023 Morch 31,2022
No, of Equity Shares| % Halding No. of Equity Shares % Holding
% Change during the year % Change during the year
Fermenta Biotech Limited 1.000.000 100,00%] & 25.000 100,007 R

() Rights, preferences and restrictions

rmenta BIOTECH GmbH

c/o InterGest Germany GmbH

StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg




Fermenta Blotech Limited (Formerly known as DIL Limited)
CIN: NA

Notes to the Standalone financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

23 Other equity

bl

(" inEUR)

Reserves and Surplus

Ttems of other
comprehensive
Income

Unrealised (loss)
on dilution

Capltal
redemption
reserve

Capltal reserve
pursuant to
amnlgamation

Capltal
reserve

Share options
General reserve | outstanding
nccount

Retalned earnings

Equity
Instruments
through OCI

Total

Balance asat April 01,2021

Profit for the year

Recognition of share based payments
(Other comprehensive income for the year

(197.413,25)
(1.503.132,66)

(497.413,25)
(1.503.132,66)

Balance as at March 31,2022

Profit for the year

Payment of dividend (gross)

Recognition of share based payments
Other comprehensive income for the year

(2.000.545,91)
(2.891.399,17)

(2.000.545,91)
(2.891.399,17))

Balnnce us at March 31, 2023

(4.891.945,08)

(4.891.945,08)

*Represents remeasurement of defined benefit plan
Description of nature and purpose of cach reserve
Unrealised gain/(loss) on dilution:

Capital redemption reserve :

Capltal reserve pursuant to amalgamatlon :
Capltal reserve: *

General reserve:

Share optlons oulstanding nccount :

Retained earnlngs:

Equity Instruments through other comprehensive Income:

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH

StraBenbahnring 13

20251 Hamburg



FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
CIN: NA

Notes to the Standnlonc finnncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

24 Borrowings (Non-current)

el

("inEUR)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Non-current Current Non-current Current

Seeured
Term Lonns

From Banks

From others

Amount disclosed under the head "Borrowings (Current)" (Refer Note 28)

Total

Notes
1)

b)

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg



FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
CIN: NA

Notes to the Standulone finnncial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

25 Other financial liabilities (Non current)

ikl

(" inEUR)

March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Deposits from tenants
Totnl - =
26 Provisions (Non-current)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Provisions for employee benefits:
Gratuity
Compensnted absences
Total = &
& (-\
/
-

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
Strallenbahnring 13
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FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
CIN: NA

Notes to the Standalone financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

27 Other linbilities (Non current)

izl

(*inEUR)

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Deferred rent
Total - -
28 Borrowings (Current)
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Loans repaynble on demand

From banks (Secured)
Cash credit and Bank overdraft
Packing credit
Short term working capilal loan
From banls (Secured)
Current maturities of long term debts (Refer Note 24)

From others (Secured)
For business operations (Refer Note 2+4)

Total

=

rermenta BIOTECY GmbH
/o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
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Notes to the Standalone fi inl

29 Trade payables (Current)

for the year ended March 31, 2023

ki

("inEUR)

March 31,2023

March 31,2022

Dues of micro and small enterprises (MSME) (Refer Note 52)

Dues of creditors other than MSME 5.929.271,00 6.053.770,75
Disputed dues of MSME

Disputed dues of creditors other than MSME

Total 5,929.271,00 6.053,770,75
Ageing of trade payables: ns nt March 31,2023

Particulnis Notiue Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments Total
Less than 1 yenr | 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
Dues of MSME -
Dues of creditors other than MSME 5.929.271,00 5.929.271,00
Disputed dues of MSME .
Disputed dues of creditors other than MSME P
Totnl 5.929.271,00 - - - 5.929,271,00
Ageing of trade paynbles: as at March 31, 2022
Particiin Mot diis Outstanding for the following period from due date of payments —
Less than 1 year | 1-2 yemrs 2-3 yenrs More than 3 yenrs

Dues of MSME <
Dues of creditors other thanMSME 6.053.770,75 6.053.770,75
Disputed dues of MSME N
Disputed dues of creditors other than MSME -
Total 6.,053.770,75 - - - 6.053.770,75

a)&
\ -
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c/o InterGest Germany GmbH

StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg




FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
CIN: NA
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30 Other financinl linbilities (Curreat)

3

3

3

Q

[

Fizd

("inEUR)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Deposits from tenanls

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings
Payable to employees / directors

Linbility for capital expenditure
Derivatives not designated ns hedge
Unclaimed dividend

Duc lo others

Totnl

Other curreat liabilitics

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Advances from custonters

Statutory dues 24.748,81 143.472,04
Deferred rent

Otliers

Travel advances lo employees

Total 24.748,81 143.472,04

Provisions (Current)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Provisions for employee benefit:
Compensated absences

Other Provistons

Other Provisions 224.783,07 29.790,00
Totnl 224,783,07 29,790,00
Current tax linbilitics (net)
Rardcilacs March 31, 2023 March 31,2022

Provisian for income tax (net of odvance tax for tax * EUR [ as ot March 31, 2022
“#E#H Lakhs])

Total

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg
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Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

34 Revenue from operations

ki

(*inEUR)

March 31,2023

March 31,2022

Sale of products 921.518,53
Rent Income

Amortised deferred rent

Service income (infrastructure support services to tenants)

Sale of services

Other operating revenues
Export incentive
Scrap sales

1.005.804,72

Total 921,518,53 1.005.804,72
35 Otherincome
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Interest income on financial assets carried at amortised cost:
Bank deposits
Other financial assets
Dividend income on investment in equity instruments
designated as at fair value through other comprehensive
Foreign exchange gain (net) 58.484,76
Net gain on fair value changes of derivatives at FVTPL
Insurance claims
Liabilities / provisions no longer required written back:
From Trade receivables
From Others 4.433,00
- 4.433,00
Miscellaneous income
Total 58.484,76 4.433,00
36 Cost of materials consumed
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Inventories of raw materials / packing materials at the beginning of the year 1.404.556,00 1.459.402,12
Add : Purchases 1.515.012,67 1.185.285,53
Less : Inventories of raw materials / packing materials at the end of the year 187.849,81 1.404.556,00
Total 2.731.718,86 1.240.131,65

i
|

A
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Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

37 Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and work-in-progress

38

39

40

v 1

(' inEUR)

March 31, 2023

March 31,2022

Inventovies at the end of the year
Work-in-progress

Finished goods

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Work-in-progress

1.589.612,50

1.589.612,50

1.622.163,70

1.622.163,70

Finished goods 1.622.163,70 1.935.617,15
1.622.163,70 1.935.617,15
32.551,20 313.453,45

Employee benefits expense

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

Salaries and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds [Refer Note 47]

Gratuity expense [Refer Note 47]
Share based payments to employees [Refer Note 60]

Staff welfare expenses

138.045,61

117.597,42

Total

138.045,61

117.597,42

Finance costs

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

[nterest on
Term loans

Loans repayable on demand

Liabilities carried at amortised cost (Unwinding of interest)

Lease liabilities

Others
Other borrowing costs

Total

Depreciation and amortisation expense

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Depreciation of investment property

Amortisation of intangible assets

336.724,16

115.947,85

Total

336.724,16

115.947,85

fermenta BIOTECH GmbH

C \
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Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023

(TinEUR)
41 Other expenses

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Processing charges 8.678,54 257.949,26
Freight and forwarding charges 166.659,47 154.568,71
Commission on sales ' 78.400,75 10.165,60
Rent (including lease rentals) 50.067,80 14.854,75
Insurance 11.715,71 18.556,55
Travelling and conveyance 15.613,84 7.631,45
Professional and legal fees 248.110,16 230.307,14
Payment to auditors 19.247,80 11.054,47
Postage and telephone 760,54 668,25
Printing and stationery 86,46 168,62
Bank charges 4.420,41 1.017,23
Donations 132,88 170,00
Miscellaneous expenses 28.468,27 10.032,98
Total 632.362,63 726.240,01

Fer a BIOTECH GmbH

c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
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Fermenta Blotech Limited (Formerly known ns DIL Limlted)
CIN: NA
Notes to the Standalone financlal stalements for the year ended March 31,2023

42 Related partles disclosures as per Ind AS 24

A) Nnmes of the related partics and d of r

Counlry of Incorporation Proportion of ownership interest as at

Mnrch 31,2023 March 31,2022

n)|Holdlng Company:
Fermenta Biotech Limited

India 100% 100%

Subsidlarles:
NA

1) Key Manngenient Personnel

Nnme of Key b Personnel

Design

Ms.Viviane Spethmann

Managing Director

c) Assoclale
NA

d) Enlerprises under significant Influence of loy management personnel or their relatives:

NA

~ermehta\BIOTECH GmbH
o InteXGyst germany GmbH

Strallenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg
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Fernmenta Blotech Limited (Formerly known as DIL Limited)
CIN: NA

kg

Notes ta the Standalone financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (" inEUR)
B) Related party transactions:
Sr.No. Particulars Enterprise
. Key i I i
Halding Company Subsldlaries eragngl? iy KMP or thelr Assacintes
relatives
{ Remunerntion fo Dircetors nnd Key B Personnel (i <MD
36.000,00
(36.000,00)
2 Commission to non-executive directors (excluding statutory levy)
3 Dircctors sitting fees
4 Rent and service Income
5 Rent pald
6 Expendilure Incurred on hehalf of related parties
Fermenta Biotech Lid. - Preduet Registration fees in SAG Chile 1.728,13
)
7 Sale of products
Fermenta USA LLC € .
)
Fermenta Biotech Ltd. -
(22.500,00)
8 Purchase of raw materinls and pncking materials
Fermenta Biotech Lid. 817.200,00
(1.092.600,00)
9 Commission on Sales
Fermenta USA LLC in USD s 32.555,00
)

Fe ta BIOTECH GmbH

c/o\Inter

st Germany GmbH

traBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg




Fermenta Blotech Limited (Formerly known ny DIL Limited) r
CIN: NA f bnt.

Notes o tho Standalone financlnl statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (*inEUR)
SrNo.  Partlculary Enlerprise
Key |
ding C Y g Y
Holding Company Subsldinrles  aiacis by KB or thelr Assoclates
relnfives,

9 Interest on lonn given

10 Investment nade

11 Lonns given

(Figures in brackets are the corresponding figures in respect of the previous year.)
* The remuneration to the koy manogericl persannel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determired on an actuarial basis for the company as n whole.

Fermenta IOTECH GmbH

c/o InterGe; t Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13

20251 Hamburg




Fermenta Blotech Limited (Formerly known ny DIL Limited)
CIN: NA
Nates to the Standalone finunclal statenients for the year ended March 31, 2023

[ o Balance outstanding ns at the end of the yenr;
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
n. Trade payables and relmbursenient payables
Subsidiary / Holding
Fermentn USA LLC 55.699,18 0,00
Fermenta Biotech Ltd. 4.540.384,70 3.721.402,57
112.000,00 112.000,00
b, Trader and r
Subsidinry / Holding
Fermenta USA LLC - 280.328,30
Fermenta Biotech Ltd. 22.500,00 22.500,00

e All for doubiful debts/nd

Associnte

d. Deposit from tennnts

e. Provision for diminutlon in value of investments
Assacinte

Subsidinry

. Other financial liabllitles
Key mnnngement personncl

g Inter corporate deposits
Assaclnte

h. Lenn given
Subsidinry

nta BIOTECH GmbH

dlo InterGest Germany GmbH

StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg
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FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
CIN: NA
Notes to the Standalone financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

4

3

C . and Conti P

il

("inEUR)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

(i) Commitments:

(ii) Contingeat linbilities:

44 Payment to nuditors excluding statutory levies
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
For audit 19.247,80 1105447
For limiled review
For other services
Reimbursement of expenses
19.247.80 11.05447
45 Earnings per shave (EPS):
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted carnings per share ;
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit for the year used for computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (* in Lakhs)
Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating basic EPS [Refer Note 22(n)]
Effect of dilutive potential equity shares

Weighted average number of equity shares used in calculating diluted EPS

Baosic enmings per equity share [nominal value of share * 5 (March 31, 2022: * ##)]

Diluted camings per cquity sharc [nominal value of share * 5 (March 31, 2022: * #4)]

c/o
traBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg

Fe}\:h ta BIOTECH GmbH
InterGest Germany GmbH
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Notes to the Standalone financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

46 Lenses

s

=

)

)

(A) Assets taken on operating lense

ikl

(" inEUR)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Deprecintion charge for right-of-use assels
Expenses relating to leases of low-value asscts accounted for on siraight line basis (included in Rent expenses in Note 41)
Total cash onlfow for leases

Maturity analysis of leasc linbilitics (on undiscounted basis)

Less than one year
Oneto five years
More than five years

Weighted average incremental borrowing rate npplied to lease linbilitics recognised in the balance sheet at the
date.

The following is the summnry of practical expedicnts clected on initinl application:

i) The Company has nol reassessed whether a contract is or contains a lease at the dale of initial application,

ii) The Company has utilised the exemptions provided for short-termt leases (less than a year) and leases for low value nssets.

i) The Company has utilised hindsight in determining the lease terms where contracts contained options to extend or terminate the lease.
iv) Initial dircct costs arc oxcluded from the measurement of right-of-uso asscts at the date of initial application

The difference belween the aperating lease commitments as of March 31, 2019, disclosed applying Ind AS 17 and the value of tho lease liability recognised in tho balance sheet at the date of initial application is

primarily on account of inclusion of extension options reasonably certain to be exercised, in measuring the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116.

General description of significant leasing ngreements
(i) Refundable interest free deposits have been given under lease agreements.
(i) Some of the agreements provide for carly termination by cither party with a specified notico peried / renewal with conditions

(B) Assets given on operating lease

Particulars March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Rent income iscd in the of profit and loss for the year

Future minimum lease income under the non-cancellable leases in the nggregate and for each
of the following periods:

i) Not later than one year

it) Later than one year and not later than five years

iii) Moro than five years

Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest' Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg
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Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

47

M
m
(Im)

D

1

()

Employee benefits

The Company operates following employee benefit plans

Defined contribution plans: Provident fund, superannuation fund, employee slate insurance scheme (ESIC) and labour welfare fund.
Defined benefit plan: Gratuity (funded)

Other long term benefit plan: Compensated absences (unfunded)

ke

(*inEUR)

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for all qualifying employees of the Company. The contribution to defined contribution

plan, recognised as expenses in the Standalone statement of profit and loss for the year is as under (Refer Note 38).
Employer's contribution to provident fund

Employer’s contribution to superannuation fund

Employer's contribution to ESIC and Employees Deposit Linked Insurance (EDLI)

Employer's contribution to labour welfare fund

Defined benefit plan
The Company operates a defined benefit plan, viz., gratuity.

In respect of Gratuity, a defined benefit plan, contributions are made to LIC’s Recognised Group Gratuity Fund Scheme. It is governed by the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Gratuity Act, employees are entitled to specific benefit at the time of retirement or termination of the employment on completion
of five years or death while in employment. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at the time of
retirement/termination. Provision for Gratuity is based on actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary as at the year end. Each year, the Company

reviews the level of funding in the gratuity fund.

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as folloys:

March 31, 2023

March 31,2022

Opening defined benefit obligation

Interest cost

Current service cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial (Gain)/loss on obligations - due to changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial (Gain)/loss on obligations - due to changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (Gain)/loss on obligations - due to changes in experience adjustment

Closing defined benefit obligation a

Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:

March 31, 2023

March 31,2022

Opening fair value of plan assets
Employer's contributions

Interest income
Remeasurement gain / (loss) :
Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense)

Benefit paid

Closing fair value of plan assets 0,00

0,00

Fermerita BIOTECH GmbH
c/o IntekGest Germany GmbH
SttaBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg
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Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

47 Employee benefits

©)

d)

)

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets and defined benefit obligation:

“ya

(*inEUR)

The amount included in the Standalone financial statements arising from the Company's obligation in respect of its defined benefit obligation plan is

as follows:

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

Fair value of plan assets
Present value of defined benefit obligation

Amounts recognised in the Standalone balance sheet surplus/(deficit)

The amount recognised in Standalone statement of profit and loss in respect of the defined benefit plan are as follows:

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Current service cost
Net interest expense / (income)

Components of defined benefit costs recognised in Standalone statement of profit and loss

The amount recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of the defined benefit plan is as follows:

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

Remeasurement on the net defined benefits liability:

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense)
Actuarial gains /(losses) arising from changes in financial assumptions
Actuarial gains /(losses) arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial gains /(losses) arising from changes in experience adjustments

Components of defined benefit recognised as income / (loss) in other comprehensive income

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations are as follows:

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

Discount rate (per annumy)

Salary escalation rate (per annum)

Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum)
Retirement Age

Mortality rate

Leaving Service (age groups)

7,05%
5,00%
7,05%
58 Years

6,80%
5,00%
6,80%
58 Years

Indian Assured lives
Mortality (2012-14)

Indian Assured lives
Mortality (2012-14)

21-30 years- 4%

21-30 years- 4%

31-40 years -3%

31-40 years - 3%

41-50 years - 2%

41-50 years - 2%

Above 50 years - 1%

Above 50 years - 1%

The estimates of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, take into account inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors
including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the actuary.

The expected rate of return on plan assets is considered as per declaration from Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) .
The expected contributions for defined benefit plan for the next financial year is * #### Lakhs (March 31, 2022: * #### Lakhs).

Fer

BlOTECH GgmbH
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47 Employee benefits ("inEUR)

g)

h)

Maturity analysis of projected benefit abligation

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Expected benefits for Year |
Expected benefits for Year 2
Expected benefits for Year 3
Expected benefits for Year 4
Expected benefits for Year 5
Expected benefits for Year 6
Expected benefits for Year 7
Expected benefits for Year 8
Expected benefits for Year 9
Expected benefits for Year 10 and above

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Insurer managed funds

Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis
below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at end of year, while holding all other assumptions constant.
The result of sensitivity analysis is given below:

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(Decrease)/increase in DBO* (Decrease)/increase in DBO*
Discount rate (- 0.50%) 4,33% 4,53%
Discount rate (+ 0.50%) -4,02% 4,20%
Salary escalation rate (- 0.50%) -3,90% -4,01%
Salary escalation rate (+ 0.50%) 4,17% 4,30%

*DBO: Defined benefit obligation

Inherent risks:
The inherent risk for the Company mainly are adverse salary growth or demographic experience or inadequate returns on underlying plan assets can result in an
increase in cost of providing these benefits to employees in future. Since the benefits are lump sum in nature the plan is not subject to any longevity risks.

III) Other long term benefit plan

Lol
Fermenta BIOTECH GmbH
c/o InterGest-Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg
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Notes to the Standalone financinl statenients for the year ended March 31, 2023

48 Income tnx
48A Tax expense r ised in the Standal of profit and loss and otlier comprehensive income consists of:

ki

(*inEUR)

Particulars

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

Tax expenses;

Current tax

Deferred tax charge

Income tax expense re iscd in the of profit nnd loss

Tax expense recognised in other comprehensive inconie

Total Tax expense

48B A reconcilintion of income tax expense to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the profit before income tax is summarised below:

Particulnrs

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit before tax
Enacted income tax rate in India (%) #
Income tax expense calculated at enacted income tax rate
Effect of tax on:
Impact of change in tax rates on Deferred tax assets
Expenses disallowed under income Tax
Income that is excmpt from fax
Incremental deduction on account of research and development
Differential tax effect due to effective lx rate difference

Others

Total income tnx expense

Tax exj r ised in Standal of profit and loss

Tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income

Total tax expense

r

Fer GmbH
c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
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Notes to the Standalone financinl statements for the yenr ended March 31, 2023

48  Income tnx (*inEUR)
48C The major | of deferred tax linbilities/(nssets) arising on nccount of temporary differences nre ns follows:
Mureh 31,2023
Particulars
Aprdl 01,2022 Statement of profit and | Other comprehensive Murch 31, 2023
loss income

(i) Components of deferred tnx linbilitics (net)

Deferred tax linbilitics

Property, plant and equipment and intongible assels; Impact of differencel

between written down value os per books of account and income tax

Deferred tax nssets

Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis

Allowance for doubtful debts and ndvances

Allowance for impainment in the value of non currenl investment and share

application money

MAT Credit entitlement

Others

Deferred tox charge/(credit) = =

Net deferred tax nssets - =

March 31, 2022
Particulars
April 01,2021 Statement of profit and | Other comprehensive March 31, 2022
loss income

(i) Companents of deferred tax linbilities (net)

Deferred {ax linbilitics

Property, plant and equipment ond intongible assels: Impact of difference|

between written down value as per baoks of account and income tax

Deferred tax nssets

Expenses claimed for tax purpose on payment basis

Allowance for doubtful debts and advances

Allowance for impairment in the value of non current investment and share

application money

MAT Credit entitlement

Others

Deferred tax charge/(credit) - s

Net deferred tnx asscts - -
48D Details of unused tax losses and unabsorbed tax deprecintion for which deferred tax assets have not been recognised:

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Unuscd tax losses (capital in nature)

c/o InterGest Germany GmbH
traBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg
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Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

49 Research and development expenditure

50 Commissian and Diveclor sitting fees

51 Details of CSR expenditure

bl

(*inEUR)

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

Gross amount required (o be spent by the Company

Particulars
In cash Yet to be paid in cash ‘Total Incash

Yet to be paid in
cash

Total

Amount spent during the year #
i) Constructio/acquisition of any assct
ii)  On purposes other than (i) above

Nature of CSR activitics underiaken

Nature of CSR uctivities

Amotmt Spent

March 31, 2023

March 31,2022

Promoting health care including preventive health care
Contribution for the benefit of anued forces veterans

Contri towards animal welfare

Social welfare and Covid care support
Covid care support

Promoting health care

Promoting education

Protection of art and culture

Administmtive Overheads

52 Disclosures under the Micro, Small and dedlum Enterprises Development Act, 2006

March 31,2023

March 31, 2022

a (i) Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the accounting year
(ii) Interest due on above
‘The Total of (i) and (ii)

b The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006) along
with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

¢ The amaunt of interest duc and payable for the perod of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but
without ndding the interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

d The amount of interest accrued and renmining unpaid at the end of each accounting year, and

¢ The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are actually paid to the
small enterprises for the purpose of asa diture under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006

The information regarding Micro and Small Enterprises has been determined to the extent such partics have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.
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Notes to the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
("inEUR)
53A Categories of the financial instruments

Particulars
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022

a) Financial assets

Financial assets measured at fair value through Other comprehensive income
Investments in equity instruments -quoted - “
Investments in equity instruments -unquoted

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

(i) Trade receivables 132,232,00 627.550,86
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 145.342,60 96.587,36
(iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above - -
(iv) Share application money - g
(iv) Loans - -
(v) Other financial assets - -

Total Financial assets 277.574,60 724.138,22

b) Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Lease liabilities
(iii) Trade payables 5.929.271,00 6.043.750,75
(iv) Other financial liabilities 24.748,81 143.472,04
Tinancial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss

Derivatives not designated as hedge

Total Financial liabilities 5.954,019,81 6.187.222,79

53B Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements:

Particulars

March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Opening balance & .
Total gains or (losses)
Recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss. “ -

Closing balance B N

54 Patents and Knowhow
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FERMENTA BIOTECH GMBH
CIN: NA
Notes to the Standalone financinl statements for the year ended Mnrch 31,2023

55 Fair value

il

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value but fair valuc disclosurcs are required :

("in EUR)
Carrying value Fair value

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Finnucinl assets
Trade receivables 132.232,00 627.550,86 132.232,00 627.550,86
Cash and cash equivalents 145.342,60 96.587,36 145.342,60 96.587,36
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financial assets
Total asscts 271.574,60 724.138,22 277.574,60 724.138,22
Financinl liabilities
Trade payables 5.929.271,00 6.053.770,75 5.929.271,00 6.043.750,75
Lease liabilities .
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities 24.748,81 143.472,04 24.748,81 143.472,04
Derivatives not designated as hedge
Total Jinbilities 5.954.019,81 6.197.242,79 5.954.019,81 6.187.222,79

The financial assets above do not include i in subsidiarics which are in mutual finds measured at fair value through profit and loss and investments in equity
instruments measured at fair value through OCL
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial asscts and financial liabilitics financial pproxi their fair values.
Fair value hiernrchy
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Fair valuc Fair value

Fair Value hierarchy Fair Value hierarchy|
Financinl assets mensured at fair value through Other comprehensive income
I in equity sl quoted Level | Lovel 1
Investments in equity shares-unquoted Level 3 Level 3
Financial Linbilities mensured at fair value through profit or loss
Derivatives not designated as hedge Level 2 . Level 2|

. Q
R
Ferm n‘a}IOTECH GmbH
c/o IntevGest Germany GmbH
StraBenbahnring 13
20251 Hamburg
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G | BIOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
a) Property, Plant and Equipment

¢) Non-current tax assets (net)

CURRENT ASSETS
a) Financial Assets
i) Cash and Cash Equivalents

b) Other current assets

TOTAL

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
a) Equity Share Capital
b) Other equity

LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Deferred tax liability (net)

CURRENT LIABILITIES
a) Financial Liabilities

ii) Trade payables

A) Total outstanding dues of micro and small

enterprises

B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other
than micro and small enterprises

b) Other current liabilities

TOTAL

MARCH 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

84,422.00
155,731.00

240,1563.00

15,959.29
10,000.00

25,959.29

266,112.29

87,321.71
(87,321.71)

100,000.00
166,052.29

266,052.29

60.00

60.00

266,112.29




G | BIOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

MARCH 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Notes
Income:
Revenue from operations - -
Other income 10 - 10,000.00
Total revenue (l) - 10,000.00
Expenses:
Depreciation and amortization expense 11 - 62,654.00
Other expenses 12 253,374.00 708.00
Total (Il) 253,374.00 63,362.00
Profit/(Loss) before tax (253,374.00) (53,362.00)
Tax expense:
Current tax - =
Deferred tax - (12,351.00)
Total tax expense - (12,351.00)
Profit/(Loss) for the year (253,374.00) (41,011.00)
Earning per share (equity shares, par value Rs 10 each) 13

Computed on the basis of total profit for the year

Basic / Diluted (") (25.34) (4.10)




G | BIOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

PARTICULARS MARCH 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax - (53,362.00)
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortization expense - 62,654.00
Operating profit before working capital changes - 9,292.00
Movements in working capital :

Decrease/(increase) in other assets - =

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables - (10,000.00)
Cash generation used in operations - (708.00)

Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) -

Net cash flow used in operating activities (A) - (708.00)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing activities (B) - -
C. Cash flow from financing activities
Net cash flow from/ (used in) in financing activities ©) - -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+1C) - (708.00)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year - 16,667.29
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year - 15,959.29
Components of cash and cash equivalents
With scheduled banks on:
Current account - 15,959.29
Total cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note 5) - 15,959.29
Note

1) Cash flow statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in the Accounting Standard (AS-3)
"Cash Flow Statements" as specified by Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

2) Previous year's figures have been regrouped/rearranged wherever necessary.




G | BIOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 3. - Property, Plant and Equipment

Plant and
equipment

Net Block

At April 1, 2021 -
Additions

Disposal

At Mar 31, 2022 -

Depreciation

Charge for the period -
Disposal -
At December 31, 2022

Net Block
At March 31, 2022 .
At December 31, 2022 -

MARCH 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Note 4- Non-current tax assets (net)
MAT credit entitlement - 64,159.00

Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation) - 91,572.00
- 155,731.00

MARCH 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Note 5 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with banks:
With scheduled banks on:
Current account - 15,959.29

- 15,959.29




G | BIOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 6 - Other current assets

Security Deposits

Note 7 - Equity Share capital:
Authorised Shares:
50000 (March 31, 2022 - 50000) Equity Shares of *.10/- each

Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up shares:
10000 (March 31, 2022 - 10000) Equity Shares of *.10 each fully paid-up
Less: Payment to Shareholders in lie of clsoure (FBL)

a) Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Name of the shareholder
Equity shares of °. 10/- each fully paid,

Fermenta Biotech Limited
Ronator Investments Limited (Holding Purchase buy FBL on 16.12.2022)

b) Shares held by holding company

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding Company
are as below.

Fermenta Biotech Limited

Note 8 - Other equity

MARCH 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

- 10,000.00

10,000.00

MARCH 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

500,000.00 500,000.00

500,000.00 500,000.00

100,000.00 100,000.00
(12,678.29)

87,321.71 100,000.00

MARCH 31, 2023

% holding in the
class

100.00%

No of Shares

10,000

MARCH 31, 2023

10,000 (March 31, 2022 - 10,000) Equity shares of ". 10/- each 100,000.00
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 31 December, 2022
(a) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
No of Shares
a) Balance at the beginning of the reporting period - 1 April 2022 10,000 100,000.00
b) Changes in equity share capital during the period -
¢) Balance at the end of the reporting period - 31 December 2022 10,000 100,000.00

(b) Other equity

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period - 01 April 2021
Loss for the year

Balance at the end of the reporting period 31 March 2022

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period - 01 April 2022
Loss for the period
Balance at the end of the reporting period 31 December 2022

Reserves and surplus
Retained Earnings

207,063.29
(41,011.00)

166,052.29

166,052.29
(253,374.00)

(87,321.71)

March 31, 2022

% holding in the
class

62.50%
37.50%

March 31, 2022

62,500.00



G | BIOTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

Note 9 - Deferred tax liability (net): *
Deferred tax liability

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and depreciation/
amortization charged for the financial reporting

Gross deferred tax liability

Deferred tax asset
Gross deferred tax asset
Net deferred tax liability

* In absence of virtual certainty the Company has not recognized deferred tax assets (DTA)/deferred
tax liability (DTL) on timing differences arising from disallowance of accumulated depreciation and
other items.

Note 10 - Other income:
Miscellaneous Income

Previous year provision written back

Note 11 - Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of Property, Plant and Equipment

Note 12 - Other expenses:
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Legal and professional charges
Payment to auditors (Audit fees)
Filing Fees

Sundry Balances no longer Payable

Miscellaneous expenses

Note 13 - Earnings per share (EPS):
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted eamings per share :
Basic/Diluted
Net profit for the year attributable to equity shareholders

Weighted average number of equity shares of Rs 10 each used for calculation of basic
earnings per share (adjusted for partly paid shares)

Earnings per share, basic

Note 14 -

MARCH 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

60.00

60.00

60.00

MARCH 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

10,000.00

MARCH 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

62,654.00

62,654.00

MARCH 31, 2023

253,374.00

March 31, 2022

708.00

253,374.00

708.00

MARCH 31, 2023

(253,374.00)
10,000

(25.39)

March 31, 2022

(41,011.00)
10,000

(4.10)

Application for strike off of G. I. Biotech Private Limited was made to Ministry Of Corporate Affairs before March 31, 2023, however the, status on

Ministry of Corporate Affairs website is 'Under Process of Striking off.
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